Discovery Public School
126 - 8th Street N.W.
Faribault, MN 55021

Regular Meeting
December 15, 2022 @ 4:30pm

The mission of Discovery Public School of Faribault is to meet the current and future needs of
middle and high school students by providing a stable and consistent environment in which
each student builds necessary social, academic, personal, and career skills for a satisfying
and productive life,

Per Statute 13D.021 subdivision 1.1:
*The DPS Board Chair has determined that an in-person meeting is not practical or prudent
because of a health pandemic.”

1. Call to Order and Roll Call -

___Russ Kennedy, Chair ___ Steven (Sam) Macklay;
Clerk/Treasurer

____ Jim Severson, Vice-Chair ___ Cody Hanson

__ Sarah Hammer ___ Sharon Hansen

___Authorizer (Osprey Wilds): ___Kari-Ann Schmidt

____ Guest(s): ____Dan Weisser, Ex-Officio

2. Approval of the Agenda-

Motion: Second: Carried: Failed: Abstain:

3. Approval of the November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes-

Motion: Second: Carried: Failed: Abstain:

4. Monthly Financial Statement—

Motion: Second: Carried: Failed: Abstain:

5. Citizen Participation —

6. REPORTS -

1. Director’s Report —

2. Community — (Dan Weisser)

3. Finance ~ (Russ Kennedy, Jim Severson, Dan Weisser)

4. Academic Committee — (Dan Weisser, Jim Severson, Sharon Hansen)

5. Environmental Education - (Jim Severson, Sharon Hansen)



7. DISCUSSION ITEMS:

7.1 SCHOOL BOARD TRAINING: FINANCE TRAINING-TRAVIS BERENDS-BERGANKDV

7.2 DPS — BA BOYS BASKETBALL COOP -

7.3 OW POINT OF CONTACT UPDATE —

7.4 WBWF SURVEY -

8. ACTION ITEMS:

8.1 DPS 2022 YEAR END FINANCIAL AUDIT (DRAFT) —

Motion: _ Second: Carried: Failed: Abstain:

Our next meeting is scheduled for JANUARY 19, 2023 at 4:30.

Agenda items:

Board members are requested to check their schedules to confirm this date and time
prior to Adjournment today.

9. ADJOURNMENT:

Motion: Second: Carried: Failed: Abstain:




Discovery Public School
126 - 8th Street N.-W.
Faribault, MN 55021

Regular Meeting
November 17, 2022 @ 4:30pm

The mission of Discovery Public School of Faribault is to meet the current and future needs of
middle and high school students by providing a stable and consistent environment in which
each student builds necessary social, academic, personal, and career skills for a satisfying
and productive life.

Per MN statute 13D.021 subdivision 1.1: “The DPS Board Chair has determined that an in-person
meeting is not practical or prudent because of a health pandemic.”

. Call to Order and Roll Call: The meeting was called to order at 4:30 p.m. by Russ Kennedy. Russ
Kennedy (Chair), Jim Severson (Vice-Chair), Dan Weisser (Ex-Officio), Cody Hanson, and Sharon Hansen
were present. Kari-Ann Schmidt and Sarah Hammer attended remotely, via “Google Meet”. S. Sam
Macklay (Secretary) arrived at 4:33 p.m.

. Approval of the Agenda: Russ K. asked for a motion to approve the agenda. Jim S. made a motion to
approve the agenda. The motion was seconded by Cody H. The motion carried (6-0).

. Approval of the October 13, 2022 Minutes: Sharon H. made a motion to approve the October 13, 2022
Regular Meeting minutes. The motion was seconded by Cody H. The motion carried (6-0).

. Monthly Financial Statements: The Board reviewed and discussed the financial statement. Sam had
submitted a question to Travis Berends about the report and his (email) reply was considered confusing.
Sam M. made a motion to accept the [As of] October 31, 2022 Financial Statements, as printed in the
meeting packet, with the proviso that Travis meet with the Finance Committee and clarify his answer. The
motion was seconded by Sharon H. The motion carried (7-0).

. Citizen Participation: None.

. Reports:

6.1 Director’s Report: Cash on Hand: $188.162.22 Enrollment: 50

Qtr. 2 started 11/7/22.
DPS students had a Halloween Party/Haunted House on Friday Oct. 28. Party went well. DPS
students/staff also held a food drive leading up to the party. All food was donated to St. Vincent de
Paul’s food shelf.

e Field Trip to South Central College scheduled for our Career Readiness class on 11/17.

6.2 Community: Dan reported that five DPS students intend to play basketball with the Bethlehem
Academy team. Dan met with the students and reviewed the academic and sportsmanship expectations of
the schools.

6.3 Finance: (Russ K., Jim S., Dan W.) Dan met with Travis Berends. Travis reported that although we
based or budget on 52 students and our current ADM is 49.5, our finances look “okay”. Our compensatory
revenue has increased above projections because more students are being certified for federal programs.



6.4 Academic Committee: (Dan W., Jim S., Sharon H.)
NWEA Testing is completed and we have begun meeting with students to set goals and review credits.

In our contractual goals with Osprey Wilds, Indicator 1 is our Mission Related Goals. Our goal for that area
is: Measure 1.1 [CCR] — 8 Points: From FY19 to FY23, the aggregate percentage of students in grades 9-12
who will be on-track to graduate will be equal to or greater than 70%.

We currently have 28/32 high school students (87.5%) on track to graduate as of the end of first quarter. Of
those students, all of our ninth and tenth grade students are on track to graduate.

6.5 Environmental Education: (Sharon H., Garret Bitker, Jim S.)

Physics students have completed a climate change research project, each student has identified a topic
related to climate change, researched peer reviewed articles on it and summarized them in a paragraph.
Middle school has started a unit on composting and will create their own micro composter to measure
temperature and mass changes. Mussels and smallmouth bass are being studied in ecology class. Ecology is
also doing an experiment on the effect of stream bottom substrate on removal of suspended solids from
water.

Our Environmental Literacy Plan has been approved by Osprey Wilds.

7. Discussion Items:

7.1 School Board Training: None.

7.2 Osprey Wilds Point of Contact: The Board discussed the email from Erin Anderson (included in the
meeting packet) informing us that Nalani McCutcheon will no longer serve as the liaison with our authorizer.

8. Action Items:

8.1 DPS Health Insurance Policy: Dan met with our Employers Benefit Group representative, Michael
Konzen. Together, they narrowed down the possibilities to those that most closely met our employees’
needs and expectations. The Board reviewed and discussed the comparison (costs and benefits) of the
employee health insurance policies that were printed in the meeting packet. Renewing our current plan
would entail a 1.7% increase in the premium. Jim S. made a motion to renew the Medica Choice Passport
MN 10%-10-40 plan for the 2023 calendar year. The motion was seconded by Cody H. The motion carried

(7-0).

8.2 Revised Internal Controls: The Board reviewed and discussed the internal control policies,
procedures and forms that were printed in the meeting packet. Sam M. made a motion to approve the
Revised Internal Controls, as printed in the meeting packet. The motion was seconded by Sharon H. The
motion carried (7-0).

8.3 MACS Membership: The Board discussed the pros and cons of membership in the MN Association
of Charter Schools. The annual fee is $1,250. Sharon H. made a motion that we not join MACS, this year.
The motion was seconded by Jim S. The motion carried (7-0).

9. Adjournment: The next Regular Board Meeting is scheduled for November 17, 2022 at 4:30pm. Sharon
H. made a motion to adjourn the meeting. The motion was seconded by Sam M. The motion carried (5-0).

Respectfully submitted: Sam Macklay, Secretary



DISCOVERY
Public School

Discovery Public School of Faribault #4081
Faribault, MN

Financial Statements

As of November 30, 2022

Prepared by:

Travis Berends
Outsourced Controller,
School Services



Discovery Public School of Faribault
November 2022

Table of Contents

Executive Summary Page 1
Dashboard Page 2
Balance Sheet Page 4
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures Page 5

Supplemental Information — Vo

Payroll checks Page 8

Receipts Recorded Page 11
AP Checks & Wire transfers issued Page 12
Journal Entries Page 14

Cash Flow Projections Page 15



Discovery Public School of Faribault
Faribault, Minnesota
November 2022 Financial Statements
Executive Summary

Summary of Key Financial Indicators

*  Average Daily Membership (ADM) Overview —
o Original Budget: 52 ADM
o Working Budget: 52 ADM
o Actual: 49 ADM
* The school has a budgeted surplus for the year of $7,867. A projected cumulative
fund balance of $250,215 or 27.2% of expenditures at fiscal year-end.
* The school has a working budgeted deficit for the year of $9,191. A projected
cumulative fund balance of $240,183 or 25.0% of expenditures at fiscal year-end.
* Projected Days Cash on Hand for the projected fiscal year-end is 52 days. Above 30
days meets best practices.

Financial Statement Key Points

* As of month-end, 42% of the year was complete,

*  Cash Balance as of the reporting period is $168,936 down from the previous month
of $204,950.

*  Prior year holdback balance is $3,587 as of the reporting period. Final payments will
be made over the course of the year, as MDE finalizes their review of annual
entitlements.

* Revenues received at end of the reporting period - 37%

* Expenditures disbursed at end of the reporting period — 35%

* A working budget has been added to the financial report for the month of November.
We are now projecting a slight deficit for fiscal year 2023 of $9,191.

Other Items

* The FY23 audit has been completed. Audited numbers have been added to the
November financial report.

*  Supplemental information is provided, that shows checks that were written during
the month, receipts that were posted this month, journal entries that were
completed, payroll check history for the month and FY23 projected cashflow.

Prepared by BerganKDV Management has elected to omit substantially all disclosures,
government-wide financial statements and required supplementary information.
No CPA provides any assurance on these financial statements.



Discovery Public School of Faribault

Faribauit MN
Financial Statements Dashboard
As of November 30, 2022
financial Summary - Budgeted Amounts and Year to Date Activity
to Operate Prog, fl ): Funds Used to Provide Programs and Services (Expenses): Excess / Deficit

Approved Budget $927,804 Approved Budget $919,937 $7,867
Working Budget Working Budget

Year to Date 37.4% Year to Date 34.6%

vearta
Year to Date

Where funds will come from to operate the school:

Budgets for the Year

How the money Is budgeted to be spent:

Faciltias and Equipment

Supplles and Materlals Special Ed & Title Programs
™ T— 3%

Federal Revenues 17%
o~

Dues and Memberships;

™ Fees; Other Expenses
1%

Purchased Services _ |
- Local Revenues 1% 2%

S

Salaries and Wages
1%

Fund Balance and 8ond Covenant History

300000 20.00%
200000 30.00%
100000 20.00%
4 10,00%
~100000 0.00%
Current Year Financial Trend
100% 100%
90% 90%
80% 0%
T0% 70%
60% 60%
a 50%
0% 40%
30% 30%
20% 20%
0% 10%
0% o
F
why Aug sent act NOY.emes Dec — Y oome M Apr May June
Current Year Student Enroliment Summary
54
52
50
43
16
£
a2
ADM (Funding) Budgeted Enroliment
40
831 9/30 10/31 11/30 12/31 2028 3/31 4/30 5/31
Prapared by BergankOV Mansgement has slocted to omit substantially al disclostires,

No CPA pravides sny assurance an these nancial statements.




Discovery Public School of Faribault

Faribault MN
Financial Statements Dashboard
As of November 30, 2022
|
70.00
60.00
50.00
40.00
30.00
20.00
10.00
12-13 13-14 14-15 15-16 1617 17-18 18-19 1920 20-2t 21-22
4-6 ©7-3 1912
= = Cash Balance Projection. =
$250,000
Cash Balance
$200,000
$150,000
$100,000
Cash Balance
450,000
s0
b3 E o 2 o =4 i > 3
£ £ H £ ] g g m ~., H % H 5
" # & 8 8 g # # B u 3 P! %
Prsparnd by BergsnkDV has alectod 2 .

Na GPA provides any sasurance on thesa finenclal statements.



Discovery Public School of Faribault

Prepared by BerganKDV

Management has elected to omit substantially all disclasures,

government-wide financial statements and required supplementary information.
No CPA provides any assurance on these financial statements.

Faribault MN
November 30, 2022
Audited Ending
Balance Balance
June 30, 2022 November 30, 2022
Assets

Current Assets
Cash and Investments 150,639 168,936
Accounts Receivable 1,828 1,453
MDE/State Aids Receivable/(Deferred Rev.) 21-22 60,412 3,587
MDE/State Aids Receivable balance 22-23 0 66,653
Federal Aids Receivable 78,697 25,040
Prepaid Expenses and Deposits 16,807 -

Total Current Assets 308,384 265,569
Total All Assets 308,384 265,569

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Current Liabilities
Salaries and Wages Payable, fy 2021-22 29,655 2,995
Accounts Payable 11,623 8,709
Line of Credit Payable 0 0
Due to Other Funds 0 0
Payroll Deductions and Contributions 17,732 (18,800)
Deferred Revenue 0

Total Current Liabilities 59,010 (7,096)
Fund Balance
Audited Fund Balance 6-30-2022 249,374 249,374
Net Income fy 21-22 & fy 22-23 23,290

Total Fund Balance 249,374 272,665
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 308,384 265,569

0.00




Discovery Public School of Faribault
Faribault MN

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

November 30, 2022
Number of Months 5 41.7%
FY 21-22 FY 22-23 FY 22-23
Audited Adopted Budget Working Budget Ye::::? .Date Pem:' N
48 ADM 52 ADM 52 ADM < :;tn‘/’l Bu:get
12.07.22 as of 6.30.22 12.07.22
Geneatund- )
Revenues
State Revenues
General Education Aid 508,503 502,216 502,216 179,992 35.8%
Charter School Lease Aid 66,240 66,241 66,241 15,293 23.1%
Long-Term Facilities Maintenance 7,525 8,213 8,213 o} 0.0%
Special Education Aid 198,531 197,091 197,539 60,649 30.7%
Estimated State Aid fyd 2022-23 0 0 0 66,653 0.0%
Prior year - Over/under {3,725) 0 0 0 0.0%
Total State Revenues 777,074 773,761 774,200 322,587 41.7%
Federal Revenues
Title Programs, | & Il 30,201 35,258 16,926 12,060 71.3%
Special Education Aid, F419 & 425 16,734 20,373 20,380 11,100 54.5%
CARES Funds, GEER & ESSER 32,599 68,960 85,000 3,308 3.9%
CRF, Coronavirus Relief Funds 0 0 0.0%
REAP Funds 8,761 8,778 8,778 2,190 25.0%
Total Federal Revenues 88,295 133,369 131,084 28,659 21.9%
Local Revenues
Donations & Contributions 6,111 6,500 6,500 37 0.6%
Miscellaneous local Revenues, snack fund 85 2,774 2,774 411 14.8%
Total Local Revenues 6,196 9,274 9,274 448 4.8%
Total Revenues 871,565 916,404 914,567 351,694 38.5%
Prepared by BerganKDV Management has elected to omit substantially all disclosures, 5
vide financial and required i

No CPA provides any assurance on these financlal statements.



Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

November 30, 2022
Number of Months 5 41.7%

FY 21-22 FY 22-23 FY 22-23 v o P ¢

Audited Adopted Budget Working Budget e:r t‘o i ate ercfen

48 ADM 52 ADM 52ADM 4;:‘;‘“: Bu:get

12.07.22 as of 6.30.22 12.07.22

Expenditures
Salaries and Benefits not including special ed 383,931 356,038 390,490 151,098 39.5%
Salaries payable 0.00 2,995 incl above
Contracted Services 65,440 66,770 65,500 22,298 34.0%
Legal fees 0 3,276 500 0 0.0%
Communications Services 4,765 4,896 4,800 1,984 41.3%
Postage 589 506 525 10 1.8%
Utilities 14,000 14,000 14,000 7,000 50.0%
Property and Liability Insurance 9,762 11,495 9,800 8,350 85.2%
Repairs and Maintenance, mowing and plowing 1,141 2,550 1,500 325 21.7%
Contracted Transportation 403 1,536 750 (o} 0.0%
Entry Fees/Student Travel 0 0 1,000 105 0.0%
Travel, Conferences, and Staff Training 39 200 0 250 0.0%
Building Lease 73,600 73,601 73,601 36,800 50.0%
Other Rentals and Operating Leases 4,458 5,004 4,500 1,869 41.5%
Supplies - Non iInstructional 7,420 7,580 7,500 3,069 40.9%
Supplies - Bldg Maint 1,895 2,550 2,000 472 23.6%
Computer Software License {SMART Finance & google} 5,030 5,484 5,000 4,261 85.2%
Instructional Supplies 3,403 4,760 3,500 2,644 75.5%
Textbooks & Media resources 403 1,481 500 360 72.1%
Fuel o] 189 250 0 0.0%
Equipment & Technology Equipment 47 2,500 0 15 0.0%
Dues and Memberships; Fees 6,265 8,722 6,300 3,432 54.5%
Other Expenses 0 1,196 500 0 0.0%
Misc. Expenses 1,548 1,000 0 0.0%
State Special Ed 209,230 207,464 207,936 56,162 27.0%
Title Programs - Federal 30,201 35,258 16,926 12,060 71.3%
Federal Special Ed, Director and Specialists 16,734 20,373 20,380 11,100 54.5%
CRF, Coronavirus Relief Funds 0 0.0%
CARES Federal Funds, 32,599 68,960 85,000 3,308 3.9%
Subtotal Expenditures 871,355 907,937 923,758 329,967 35.7%
Transfers to Other Funds 101 600 0 0
Total Expenditures 871,456 908,537 923,758 329,967 35.7%
Expenditures Working Budget adjustments
Genera! Fund Net Income 109 7,867 {9,191) 21,727
Prepared by BergankDV Management has alected to omit substantially all disclosures, 6

vide financial and required Y
No CPA provides any assurance on these financial statements.



Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

November 30, 2022
Number of Months 5 41.7%
FY 21-22 FY 22-23 FY 22-23
Audited Adopted Budget Working Budget Ye:rc:ic‘)':: e Pe::fent
48 ADM 52 ADM 52 ADM 49 ADM Budget
12.07.22 as of 6.30.22 12,07.22 B
Revenues
State Revenues 0 500 1,038 115 0.0%
Federal Revenues 0 10,500 31,569 3,508 11.1%
Sale of Lunches and Other Local Revenues 65 400 3,105 345 11.1%
Transfer from General Fund 101 600 0 0 0.0%
Total Revenues 166 12,000 35,712 3,968 11%
Expenditures
Salaries and Wages 0 2,500 0 0 0.0%
Employee Benefits 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Purchased Services, Food & Milk, 490 & 495 334 9,500 35,000 2,069 5.9%
Supplies and Materials 0 0 500 336 67.3%
Equipment 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Dues and Memberships 0 0 212 0 0.0%
Total Expenditures 334 12,000 35,712 2,405 6.7%
'Food Services Fund Net Income (168) 0 0 1,563
Total All Funds
Revenues
State Revenues 777,074 774,261 775,247 322,702 41.6%
Federal Revenues 88,295 143,869 162,653 32,166 19.8%
Local Revenues 6,261 9,674 12,379 793 6.4%
Transfers
Total Revenues 871,630 927,804 950,279 355,662 37.4%
Expenditures
Salaries and Benefits 383,931 358,538 390,490 154,093 39.5%
Purchased Services 174,531 193,334 211,476 81,060 38.3%
Supplies and Materials 18,151 22,044 19,250 11,142 57.9%
Equipment 47 2,500 0 15 0.0%
Other (Fundraising, Special Ed, Dues, etc.) 295,029 343,521 338,254 86,062 25.4%
Total Expenditures 871,689 919,937 959,470 332,372 34.6%
Total Revenues All Funds 871,630 927,804 950,279 355,662 37.4%
Total Expenditures All Funds 871,689 919,937 959,470 332,372 34.6%
Het income - All Funds 159) 7,867 8,191) 23,290
per budget model (17,058)
Net working budget adjustments revenue less expense 2,106
Fund Balance, All Funds as of June 30, 2022 249,433 249,374 249,374
Projected Fund Balance, All Funds, June 30, 2023 249,374 257,241 240,183
28.6% 28.0% 25.0%

Prepared by BerganKDV

Management has elected to omit substantially all disclosuses,
Ide financial and required
No CPA provides any assurance on these financial statements.




‘SJUBWAJE)S [BIDUBUY BSBY) UO 8dueINSSE Aue sapiroid YdD) ON

‘uopewdojur Kiejuawa(ddns painbal pue sjuawis)e)s {eloUBUY BPIM-JUBWILISACH —,

Mau ooayD A0Sy uw

g 'SaUNSOoosIP (e A|lenueisgns Jiwo 0} pajoale sey juawabeuep ADiueblag Aq paledaig
vo'eLs‘e 000 00°0 00642 gLzie cevee
08°99 0L'vve 000 co'6t rAN 1] 99°999°¢
25962t  0v'ee geeeh VHLO0SLEL 18'v¢ 80°901 NI 1G°G 912t £€e'ee8'l  2202/0E/LL  0-01£202S
253952tk 0¥'8e segech vd10G/€EL 18°ve 80°9014 NN 1S°GF 91 CH €668t  2202/SL/LL  0-60€202S
99 @l v Bjdwed ‘uosuey
9L'Lv9°T 00°0 000 LEVBe 18°9¢2¢ 60°00¢
00°0 0s°ecL 000 S0'€S 0L9%1L 89°L6.°E
LLese’l G199 vdLiesyl €142 66'Gl NI 25°GZ (] 2+ LG/E6°L  2202/0E/LL  0-01€20¢S
ST G/.°99 vd190'6€L 26'Ge c8'0lLl NN 81 LL 66°G¥ | LL'¥S8°L  220e/SL/LL 0-60£202S
¥s ai v ApoD ‘uosuey
6r'88lL’c 000 000 29°0vE 69°89¢2 4y 48>
000 86°202 000 ¥8'29 rA 1] 99°LYS‘Y
GZ¥6s L 66°€01} vdlieoll ch'Le YevEL NW 90°62 o' LG1 £€8°0/2'c  2202/0E/LL  0-01£202S
LA N 66°€01} vdl €01 ch'LE SEYEL NN 90°6L I LGI £8°0/2°c 220z/SL/LL  0-60£202S
£s dl alely uoleys ‘UasueH
088902 000 000 LL8LL ov"0/1 89°681
000 000 00°0 L8'6E 98°'101 8E'6VLC
6V'9LL L vd3ad 1620F  /8CC LLL6 NN GO°19 LE9L) 00°2/8°}  2202/08/LL  0-0L£202S
L€'c68 vd3d 0¢'9L 00°LL 69°¢L NW 180V LEEL 8€°2LL'L  <2202/5L/LL 0-60€202S
Leql ejuog ‘saiol4
SLLb'e 000 000 8Evee er9le 29'L61
000 000 000 S99 174 24" S£'8St'y
91°99.°L vdi88’LLL £2°ee 602l NW 89'%L 79°€01 89'L6z'c  cele/0e/LL  0-0L€202S
667,91 vHd10629L et'le £CvEL NIN GG'69 88°€6 199912 220e/5L/LL  0-60£202S
Gz ai 1841eD “axug
S1'609°L 000 000 05°9¢€l 0coel rAin 748
000 000 000 St°0¢e 8£°69 00°00L°C
£€°c66 vd3d 1£°68 €061 L8718 N 28°LY 9°98 052Le't  220e2/0e/LL  0-01£202S
cL’LL9 Yd3d6l'is eI €88t NN 95° L2 8¢€'.€E 057282 cc0c/SH/LL 0-60€202S
Le al Sle SUUOAA ‘UuBWOY
Aed Bylo B0 X34 diN0O43a vSL allley aledipsiy 1ASYO 1Is OIF-Ld  Afed a1ed yo Jepuae)
18N Xe| J8syy xe| a10jog saxe] ss0U)
Wd €v:1 A01SIH Moay9
€c0c/L0/2)
610 | 9Beq }inequie4 Jo |00yds 3ljqnd Ai1an0osiq L8OY# 10141810



‘sjuaLIalels [eIUBY 9sal) Uo soueinsse Aue sapiaocid yYdo oN

‘uonewsopu Lejuswaiddns pannbal pue sjuawiae)s |elouBLY BPIM-JUSILISACH MU SoayoAIoisIyUW ™

6 ‘sainso|osip ||e Aljenueisqns JIwo o} pajosle sey juswabeuepy AQMuebiag Aq paledalq
¥E'LG6 1 06°L} vYd.100002 19'8¢€ £E'691 NIN S0°G6 8€°261 29'999¢  220Z/SL/LL 0-60€202S
s dil Y ueq “19ssSiom
6L'705°L 00°0 000 Wsel c9'6Ll 05'€L
000 000 000 86°LC 89°8L 8€'626'L
€L°0¥8 vd3ad 1804 08'Sl ¥5'29 NW 85°S¥ c6'8v 8€°680°L  2202/0e/LL  0-0LE£202S
9'£99 vd3d 095 8L¢cl 80'¢S NN 0L°€E 8Gve 00°0v8 2c0e/SH/LL 0-60£20CS
9l uosipely ‘diguep
228162 00°0 00°0 G2°90¢ 21°8Se 96°1L6C
000 00°0 000 1265 65°¥61 or'€80‘y
89°LOVL YHLGL VL 08'Le v8'8HH NW 62°06 EEvEL 69°916°L  220z/0E/LL  0-01£202S
¥6'9/6°1L YH10629l 7 Le EEVEL NW 0€'¥0 1} €9°LG1 L2991’ 2202/SL/LL  0-60£202S
69 Al Bliep ‘towled
$6'9.0°¢ 000 000 L8'v0E 812 8¢0S€
0086 95°00¢ 000 65°€9 18°61C €9'G89't
680651 00°6% 82051} Yd3d ¢e'est €02 a6'9¢e!L NN 05°0LL Gg'aLL G/'8GE'T  2202/08/LL  0-0L£202S
01925 L 0061 820G vdad se' 1§t 994G’ S6°VEL NA LE'601L er'vil 889°'92€'c  220Z/SL/LL  0-60£202S
ge ai ‘] usle) ‘aj0ieN
€5'8LLT 000 000 £9'062 €E°EEC lS°ClE
000 st'LLL 000 L9°vS 06'eSlL L0'sL8'e
18€LE' L ¥L'GS vdL188'9I 69’2 96°LIL NI +0°'8L 2e'ssl ¥€°856°L  2202/08/LL  0-01€202S
SLYPE') LGS vdlsl el 86°92 LEGLE NI 98°GZ G2'¥G1L L9°916°1L  2202/SHLL  0-60£2028S
6¢g ai 4 edpuexajy ‘eyinq
19°L1L9 00°0 000 LS 9P 9e v 00'0
00°0 00°0 000 L8701 g9°¢c 0S'SLL
16°8vE vd3ad 29’92 £6'S 6€°Gc NW Ss9°¢ 000 05607 ¢c0z/0€/ L1 0-01€20CS
04.729¢ VYd3d 6861 4A% 16'81 NW 000 000 00°90€ c¢c0c/SH/LL  0-60€20¢S
z.dal aouaime ‘uosuyor
fed #4100 BYlo X314 diNOD43a VSL 8119y aIeJIP3N IASYO 1S Oi3-1d  Aed 8leq Jo lepusjed
1SN Xel 1R_yy xXe| ai0jag saxel S$SOIL)
INd €v:1L AO1ISIH Yo9Yy)
2¢c0c/L0/eL

£ 40 Z abed Jinequie jo jooyas aliqnd A1anoosiqg 180V # 1oLISIQ



oL

*SJUBWIJE)S [BlOUBUY 9SaL) Ua adueInsse Aue sapiaoid Ydo oN

‘uonewlojul Klejuswa|ddns pasnbai pue SJUBWSIE]S [BIoUBUY SPIM-JUBLILLIBACE

‘SaINSO[OSIP ||B Allenuelsgns Jwo o pajosje sey juswabeuep

MBU Yo9YD AIoisiy uwl
AQMuebieg Aq paiedaid

lL2eLeioe 000 00'0 §6°220°c 9.'185°C 29'€9L°C
09'061 €2'866 000 £6°€6S 0" 1ss'L 66°626 LY sjejoL
2L wnon safojdwg
89°V16°C 000 000 007001 L9°0EE 9.'¥8¢
08°¢¢ 000 00°0 €L 0L'061 veeee’s
E£'2G6°L 06°L1 YH100002 99'8¢ veGe91 NW S0'56 8€°C61 2979982 2202/0€/LL  0-01£202S
8ai ‘Y ueq ‘1assiom
Aed 18410 9410 X3 diN0D43a vsi o4ieYy aledipsy 1IdSYO 1Is 203-Ld  Aed aleq o Jepused
1SN Xe] isuy Xe] alojeg saxeL $S01Y)
Wd €1 Ao1siH Boay)
¢c02/L0/2} >
g J0 g obey linequie4 Jo |jooydS dljqnd A18A00SIg 180 # 1011S1d



*SJUBWISE}S [BIOUBUY 8SaY) U0 doueInsse Aue sapiroid YdD ON
‘uoneuviojul Aiejusweiddns pasinbal pue sjuswiele)s [eloueUl SPIM-JUBLILISACHE

000 't g90ez 'saunsosIp lle ARSI RIRTP PGy 2UgB“Wo 022 500 20 W keow A@xuebieg £q pasedaig
000 SEEL Iseppesid 1S £2Ad DOE S0. 000 02/ SO0 20 H 180F
SO0 2001 L oeup TeLULL Y WRID  L01Z 2202 LL'LL SOID
ZZHHD  dM 180y 202
0008  [£9'€L9TN$ ‘je1ol ysodeq
00°0% ] ‘ejo] idiecey
000 lpe p3 uen ggAd 000 12l 10 8 180p
osIN W L eud 2e/0e/l ¥ Ngea 0012 220208 L1 Svadal
0008 |eres9zis | reionidiecey
00°0 87'9/9'21 asea |00ydg JeUeYD £ZAS 00€ 8¥€ 000 000 SO0 |0 W |80Y
"OSIN N L eud 2z/0E/LL ¥ UPBID 6602 2202°0¢'LL Svadal
22D dM 180F L0
0008  [oo'ose$ | :eioL usodeq
000  |oooses | ‘retopideosy
00°0 00'62! ge# JwAd eigod g 100 GLL 10 g 18Ok
000 00'52Z youn £2A4 109 LOL 000 0L SO0 20 H 18OV
"osIN W 1 ey ZZOE/LL ¥ WPRID 8602 2202°0€" 1| Hsodep jooyos
221D dM 180F 0402
00°0$ leevers | :reiopLusodeg
00°0$ leeveLs | oy idiedey
000 rAdd Youn Yos 1S £2Ad 00€ 10 000 0ZZ SO0 20 H 180%
000 £e'ze youn Bay gzA4 Ly 10L 000 0L SO0 20 H 18OV
00°0 ze'e WVM4HH £2Ad4 LZb LOL 000 0L 00 20 H 18OV
00°0 9’16 youn"] pay-8s14 £ZA 2.F 102 000 OZZ SO0 20 Y 180¥
00°0 9g'el iseppealg £ZAd 9/F S0 000 0L SO0 20 Y 180%
"oSIN W 1 ayo Te/EO/L ¥ WPRID /602 2202°€0°LL SOMD
2ZL1HD  dM  180F 6002
00°0$  |z1'eze'szs | :eron ysodeq
00°0$ lc1gze'9zs | :reioLidieosy
000 56'919'2 9580 [00Y2S JeLRYD EZAd 00€ 8¥E 000 000 SO0 LO H 180%
000 29°11E%2 Q3dS £2Ad 09€ OFZ 000 000 SO0 LO H I80%
oSy W L w%eyo 22/SL/LL ¥ UPRID 9602 2202'st 11 svadl
2ZL1d0  dM  180F 8002
junowy unowy unowy adAlL ejeg ON Au| Jawoisn) apopdup adAL ON¥OIUD aleg 1S adAL ON19H yoleg jueg o) Nsodaq
pajddeun pojiddy 9910AU] AUl AU| jud disoey 1dieosy

LT8EEL

2202/L12)
2 jo | abed

usodaq Aq jieja@ yum uoday Bunsi 1disdsy
lineque4 Jo |00YaS 2lgnd A1anoas)ig JopIoI e



"SJUBLIBIE)S [BIOUBUY 9SaY} UO 9oLeInsse Aue sapiaoid ydo oN
‘uogewloju] Alejuswsaiddns paJinbal pUE SJUSWS)E}S [eIouBUY SPIM-JUBLULLISACE

ZL ‘SaINSo|asIp e Aleueisgns JILIO 0} pajoaje sey Juswabeuep AQMueBleg Aq pasedald
00'0$ £E9E5L'GH$ | [eloL Lodey
000 80'22$ | :1e30L usodeq
00°0$ |sozes | :eloLidiesey
000 80°cz UoIEUOP JILISUOZRILY EZAS 960 000 000 000 SO0 LO Y 180%
“aSIN WL o9yg /e ¥ UpRID €012 2202121 djuguozeWY
72140 dM  180F  ¥LOZ2
00°0$ [Lo's1oe$ :|ejo wsodag
00°0$ [toglo'es | :reioLidiwoey
000 L6'S0E'2 viyd €2Ad 00F ¥iv ZL0 000 SO0 L0 Y 18OF
000 60°€L vlvd €2Ad 00F ¥iLv €10 000 S00 LO H 180F
000 61'952 Gzvd €2Ad 00F SeF LLO 000 SO0 1O W 180b
000 zl'ce6 Sevd £2Ad 00F Sev ZL0 000 SO0 LO H 180F
SAH3S €001 L o8yDd 2Z/EZ/LL ¥ WpRID 2012 220Z'€2' L1 SAYIS
Z2HHD  dM 180 €102
0008  |srezris ‘fe1o) ysodag
00°0$ Gzozv't$ | :eloLdiedey
00°0 Y9Gy youn yos 18 £2Ad 00€ LOZ 000 0ZZ SO0 20 H 180V
000 vhie youn Bay £2Ad Ly LOL 000 0/ SO0 20 H 180¥
000 9522 WYHH £2Ad4 Lt LOL 000 OZL SO0 20 H 180¥
000 0’68 4aun] paonpay-8sl4 £2Ad 2.b 10Z 000 OZZ SO0 20 H 180F
SOMO 2001 | Hoayd Ze/LVLL ¥ WD 101E 220z'L1’ 1L SO0
2ZHYO  dM 180 2L02
junowy wunowy junowy adAI aeg ONAY| Jawoisny spop din adAl ONMYIOYD aleg 1S odAl ON 194 ydleg dueg o) nusodag
psnddeun  peoyddy 9210AU| AU| Au| g idi@oay  1dj9oay
[2esEl
a0zl usodaq Aq |ieya@ yum poday Bunsi idiadsay
2 j0 g abey Hnequed Jo [0oyds dijqnd A1snoosia 1epIoI e



€l

"SjuaLUBe)S [eloUBUY asay) Uo asueinsse Aue sapioid yYdD oN
‘uojjewioju; Alejuawalddns panbal pue SUSWS]E]S [BIOUBUY BPIM-JUBLILIBACD
‘S2UNS0joSIP |je AllenueIsans JWo 0} pajosfe sey jualuabeuep

AMuebiag Aq pasedany

ot'2e8'05$ _ fejo). uodey
or'es8 0ss ] :[ejoL ueq
£0'ey 220e/08/lk ON  S8A  ON 8YIn" eipuUEXelY veeL L dg 92e6 4M
000 220Z/08/LL SeA  ON  S8A ayIm) eipuexaly veEL L dg 1266 4Mm
05251 2202/62/lk ON  seA  ON  Jojeudold sjos/pul Buynsuog ased srebineN 681 1 dg 02e6 M
00°GL¥'E 2202/62/LL ON  Ss8A  ON 071 sedMeg paaINosINg Agyuebieg e L da 616 ET
L9°9L¥ 2202/62/LL ON  S8A  ON "au| ‘saiuedwoy JajyoT 9seL dg 81£6 Am
Tk 220c/6Z/Lk ON  S8A  ON  .ojaudoid 90S/pul 071 ‘suolinjog Buiyels oiberens gseL L dg L1€6 am
ST'1E0'L 2z02/62/kk ON  s8n  ON  sojeudoid 8joS/pul 071 'suoiinjog Buyerg aibeeng egeL L dg 91€6 am
£5'82 gzog/ez/LL ON  S8A  ON pred ssauisng obied sfiom 06LL 1 dg GLE6 4Mm
00°00€°2 220e/6e/LL ON  S8A  ON usAnBp *Q eoH 1 N R dq 71€6 dm
GL'ze 2202/62/LL ON  S8A  ON S.N3Lsor 901 | dg £1€6 am
£8'608 220z/ez/ll ON  S8A  ON TN 0901 1 dd zies dm
£2¥GE'Y 2202/SL/LL ON S8\ ON YIASNYHL THIM - SHi 12 N N Y 1) LLEB am
65709/ 220Z/SL/LL ON  sBA  ON SY LNIW3HILIY SFIA0TdNT DNand 0L L QUM 0Le6 4m
¥ L8E'T 2c0eg/SL/lL ON  SsA  ON OILVIOOSSY INIW3HILIY SHIHOVIL ¥S0L L QdM 60€6 am
62'GvL 2c0e/SL/LL ON  SSA  ON 4SH1 IHIM - INNIAIY 40 LdIANW L00F L elMm 80€6 am
¥9'82 2202/5L/LL ON  S8A  ON woolig Z6EL L QUM L0€6 aM
8L¥LYL 220e/SH/LL ON  s8A  ON eolpay 6L L eIm 90€6 am
¥Ev2e 220e/5L/LL ON  S8A  ON pue) ssauisng obred s|lom 06l 1 QaM 50€6 am
BO'VSL'E 2e0e/SHIL ON  seA  ON ouj sieyoealaleL Sk 1 dg ¥0€6 am
PO ¥9P'9 2e0e/5L/LL ON  SsA  ON ouj s1eyoea 8oL Sk L dd £0€6 4M
62'GEL 220g/SH/IL ON  S8A  ON  .ojeudoid ejog/pul O7T1 80IMeS UMET LBl sovL 1 dg 20¢6 4M
66721 L 2c0g/SH/L ON  S8A  ON JBYlo aAle19d0o0D 80KISS D MMS LorL L dg L0E6 am
00" LY 2202/Gk/LL ON  S8A  ON "00 "SUj paigjald siefojdwy govk ) dg 00g6 N
00082 2202/GL/LL ON  S8A  ON uopei0dion § 071 Bunsuo) yaksg siaanay e6EL | dg 6626 dm
SL'8¢2) 220g/SH/IL ON  seA  ON  .ojaudold @joS/puj Buninsuoy ee) siebineN 661 ) dg 8626 M
eeL 220e/5L/LL ON  SeA  ON Jnequed jo uebyiny 72 R dg 1626 T
00851t 2c0e/SL/LL ON  SSA ON ucpeiodio) pueis (7] Y dq 9626 am
19061 2e0z/SL/LL ON  S8A ON ovdy o8Ll | dd 6626 4Mm
19061 2202/SL/Lk ON  SeA  ON oVdy 08LL ) dg 626 M
XA 220z/¥0/lk ON  SSA  ON HI4SNYHL IHIM - SHI erLL L aam €826 4M
6€'2/8 220e/v0/Lk ON  S9A  ON SV LNJWIHIL3H STIAOTHNI DOnand v.0L L BAIM 2826 4M
61°20€'2 ge0z/P0/lk ON  SBA  ON OILYIDOSSY LNINTHILIH SHIAHOVIL ¥S0L L BAM 1826 4M
S6°06L g20e/¥0fll ON  S8A ON 4SH1 JHIM - INNIATY 4O 1d3A NN 2001 L eum 0826 4M
unowy aje PIOA U0Idy Julid sse[) xel 10puap poy apon dun adAl Aed  ONDOSYDH ONwd ydleg ueg
prop/Aed
NMMM\MM }¥99y9 pue yueg Aq Bay Juswihed
1o | abeg )inequed Jo jooyods dliqnd Aianoosiq ZBonuiAdde™



"SjusLWSIE}S [eIouBUY 9S3Y) U adueinsse Aue sapiacid Ydo oN
‘uonewlo Arejuswaiddns pasnbas pue SJUSLISIES |BIOUBUY SPIM-JUSLILISACB
‘S8INSOPSIP |2 Alleue)sgns JWo 0} pejos|a sey Juswabeuepy

¥l Ayuebiag Aq pasedaig
91 1v9$ lo1 1198
000 0c'.8 aIRJIPBN/O 012 Sev ¢l0 22k 00€ L0 IFywwnsg gg Anr - S(3D - M ueq
000 98'€G5 fed ssyio oMuoN 981 Sgv 20 22 00E L0 WwnS 2z ANF- S13D - M ueq
0€°.8 000 JopoauIQ- aiedlpa/edld 0Lz 000 000 0S0 SO0 L0 Jwwng gz Anr - S130 - M ued
98'€GS 000 Jo1osuIg- vonensiuiwpY  OLL 000 000 00 S00 10 Wwns gZANr-S[@D - Mueq swil 13D - M Ueq spoday ar d 220¢/0e/60 £0€202 £0v8
unowy unowy :o_un_‘_ommn_ UNOMY S/0 uld si19) 04d m._O Pd 1 253 |leleq _._O_un__._omoﬁ J9Y S 1S aleq poudd poDar
Hpaid Ngaa

bo-gEEL Bunsi Anug euino
[AAV A AAN s al r
| jo | abeyd lineque4 jo 100Yy3s Jliqnd >‘_¢>O0m_ﬁ s 167



.B:oEo_Ew_w_ocw____wwwﬁcomcCE:www?mmmvseq(n_ooz
! A 1ddns paanbas pue si [eoueuy apmw
5L ‘saInsopsip |ie A|[enueisqns Juto o) pajaaje sey Juawabieuepy AMuebiag Aq pasedaid

Aue sapiaosd ydd oN ‘uonewdoyu) Aseyuswajddns padinbal pue ‘SJusWaleIS [BIJUBUL SPIM-IUDWIUIDACS ‘SDINSOISIP [|€ Aj|elIuBISqNS HWO 0} PalIse sey juswagdeuelp|

)20gpIoH piy 21018 %0T :suopdwnssy

ve'968 009°28 voL'L6v 8E0'TIE LL9'TV6 7S6°8TT ¥£9°6 9/5°4ST 9L1'9p9 sjeyoL

TrE‘968 00928 0L L6V 8€0TTE LL9'tve 756'STT v£9'6 9/58'LST 9.t'9Yv9 pavaloid
SL6961 9£2'L9 - 618'eP LSP'ET 025°LL 0121 #5502 95255 og aunyg
TEL98T 9/S'vL 00€'L 6I8'El LSY'ET L8SLL 0TZ‘T PS50 €78'SS 1€ Aeiy
TTL'E8T 9L5'PL 00z 618'ep LSP'ET 0zs‘LL 01Z'T $55°0T 95£°sS o€ 4dy
LLL'08T 9/SvL 00€'L 6I8'El LSP'ET 0zs'LL (1) Xl o ¥55°0¢ 95.'SS TE JIey
€E8LLT 9.5'%L 00€'L 618°cP LSP'ET 188'LL 0Tzt #5502 €8S 87 934
€8 VL 9.S'VL 00€’L 6T8Er LSY'ET 0eS‘LL 0Tt ¥s50¢ 9GL'SS T€ uer
mnm.ﬁhﬁ mhm.ﬁ\. 00€'L 6T8Y LSY'ET 0zs'LL (0] Al o ¥55'0¢ 9G.'S§ T€ 230
9€6'39T 89118 00€‘L S6S‘EY oot pStr'sy (€) C<LE 9T1I's 899'6€ 0€ AON
0S670T YeE'EL 00g‘L 099°s€ ¥9£0€ 88V'T0T TTs'6s 78T ¥850v TERO
98L°9LT Zst's8 00g‘L ver'ey 870°9¢ 9sH'TCT ¥L2'9S €EE 879 122'v9 0g 1dag
8L°0VT SvL'L9 00g'L v€6'SE TIS72 05092 09T'€T 00s 0459 028°sS 1€ 8ny
LLV'TET 8T6'EL 009'vT SS9°EE ¥99'SZ 95.'SS - - 95£°sS 1€ Aing
6£9°0ST $ aoup|ng bujuuibag
aouejeq ysed saJnjipuadxy udy sa nypuadx3 s)jouag s1digasy | peqgpioH e | sidieoay | sjuawAded siuawAed Suipuj poliad

|elol 1BY10 pue sauejes |erol iapajfaieis | toy10 |pivielspad| piy a1e1s
1eaj Jolg
(se4n3ipuadx3) smoanQ ysed (sonuanay) smojju| yse)

4B jo0oYdS €Z-220T
Aewwung uoipafoad mold ysed
j|nequied jo |00Yas Jljqnd A1anoasiq




2021-22 Combined World's Best Workforce (WBWF) Summary and
Achievement and Integration (A&l) Progress Report

1. Report Instructions and Information

Tips when completing the report:
All questions in one section must be answered before the survey will advanceto
the next section. You must advance to the end of the form to save your answers.
Districts/charters may wish to enter short text as a placeholderto advance in the
form and return at a later timeto answer the question.

When you have reached the end of the form, you will be able to submit your
completed/in progress summary report and receive a specific link. Each
district/charter will have their own unique link to access their answers at a later
time. Via that specific link, you can update/edit your responses until December 15,
2022.

Save your specific survey link for easy access to your district/charter's summary
report.

Contact our WBWF Team at mde.worldsbestworkforce@state.mn.us if you need a

copy of your specific survey link.

2. Cover Page

1. District or Charter Name

4081-07 Discovery Public School Faribault
2. WBWF Contact Information

WBWF Contact Name

Dan Weisser

WBWF Contact Title

Director

WBWF Contact Phone Number
5073315423

WBWF Contact Email
dweisser@isd4081.org

3. Did you have an MDE approved Achievement and Integration plan
implemented in the 2021-22 school year?

Did you have an MDE approved Achievement and Integration plan during 2021-22
SY?

No

What year of your Achievement & Integration plan are you reporting on?

Did you have a Racially Identifiable School (RIS) in the 2021-22 SY?



A&l Contact Name
A&l Contact Title
A&| Contact Phone Number

A&l Contact Email

Annual Report

WBWF Requirement: For each school year, the school board must publish a report
in the local newspaper, by mail or by electronic means on the district website.

A&l Requirement: Districts must post a copy of their A&l plan, a preliminary
analysis on goal progress, and related data on student achievement on their website
30 days prior to the annual public meeting.

a. Provide the link to the district's WBWF annual report and A&l materials.

Provide the direct website link to the district's WBWF annual report. If a link is not
available, describe how the district disseminates the report to stakeholders.

https://isd4081.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/10/2021-22-Annual-Report-WBWF-Summary-Approved-10-1 3-22.pdf

Provide the direct website link to the A&l materials.

Annual Public Meeting

These annual public meetings were to be held in the fall of each school year. Report on this measure for the
2021-2022 school year.

WBWF Requirement: School boards are to hold an annual public meeting to communicate plans for the
upcoming school year based on a review of goals, outcomes and strategies from the previous year.
Stakeholders should be meaningfully involved in the meeting.

A&l Requirement: The public meeting for A&l is to be held at the same time as the WBWF annual public
meeting.

5. Provide the date of the school board annual public meeting to review progress on the
WBWEF plan and Achievement and Integration plan for the 2021-22 school year.

6/16/2022



Goals and Results

SMART goals are: specific and strategic, measurable, attainable (yet
rigorous), results-based and time-based. Districts may choose to use the
data profiles provided by MDE in reporting goals and results or other
locally determined measures.

6. All Students Ready for School
Does your district/charter enroll students in kindergarten?
No

Goal
Provide the established SMART goal for the 2021-22 school year.

Resulit

Provide the result for the 2021-22 school year that directly ties back to the
established goal.

Goal Status
Check one of the following:

7.All Students in Third Grade Achieving Grade-Level Literacy

Does your district/charter enroll students in grade 3?
No

Goal
Provide the established SMART goal for the 2021-22 school year.

Resuit

Provide the result for the 2021-22 school year that directly ties back to the
established goal.

Goal Status

Check one of the following:

s. Close the Achievement Gap(s) Between Student Groups
Goal

Provide the established SMART goal for the 2021-22 school year.

Reading: From FY19 to FY23, the aggregate percentage of students in grades 6-12 who met their falt to spring NWEA
RIT expected growth target will be at least 50.0%.



Result

Provide the result for the 2021-22 school year that directly ties back to the
established goal.

The percentage of students who met their fall to spring NWEA RIT expected growth target in reading was 48.8% (20/41
students). The aggregate percentage for FY19 to FY22 was 50.0%.

Goal Status

Check one of the following:

On Track {multi-year goal)
9. Do you have another goal for Close the Achievement Gap(s) Between
Student Groups?

Yes

10. Close the Achievement Gap(s) Between Student Groups
Goal

Provide the established SMART goal for the 2021-22 school year.

Math: From FY19 to FY23, the aggregate percentage of students in grades 6-12 who met their fall to spring NWEA RIT
expected growth target will be at least 50.0%.

Result

Provide the result for the 2021-22 school year that directly ties back to the
established goal.

The percentage of students who met their fall to spring NWEA RIT expected growth target in math was 57.5% (23/40
students). The aggregate percentage for FY19 to FY22 was 50.0%.

Goal Status

Check one of the following:

On Track {multi-year goal)

11. Do you have another goal for Close the Achievement Gap(s) Between
Student Groups?

Yes

12.Close the Achievement Gap(s) Between Student Groups
Goal

Provide the established SMART goal for the 2021-22 school year.

Science: From FY19 to FY23, the aggregate percentage of students in grades 6-12 who meet their fall to spring NWEA
RIT expected growth target as measured by the NWEA MAP Science assessment will be at least 50%.

Result

Provide the result for the 2021-22 school year that directly ties back to the
established goal.

The percentage of students who met their fall to spring NWEA RIT expected growth target in science was 55.0% (22/40
students). The aggregate percentage for FY19 to FY22 was 52.2%.



Goal Status

Check one of the following:

On Track {multi-year goal)

13. All Students Career- and College-Ready by Graduation
Goal

Provide the established SMART goal for the 2021-22 school year.

From FY19 to FY23, the aggregate percentage of 12th graders who score at least 70 out of 100 on the school-
developed rubric for their Life Plan project will be at least 70%.

Result

Provide the result for the 2021-22 school year that directly ties back to the
established goal.

Out of 6 seniors completing a full year at DPS, 5 of them (83.3%) scored 70% or greater on their Life Plan Project.
Goal Status

Check one of the following:

On Track (multi-year goal)

14. Do you have another goal for All Students Career- and College-Ready by
Graduation?

Yes

15. All Students Career- and College-Ready by Graduation
Goal

Provide the established SMART goal for the 2021-22 school year.
From FY19 to FY23, the aggregate percentage of 12th graders who earn a Job Skills Certificate will be at least 80%.

Result

Provide the result for the 2021-22 school year that directly ties back to the
established goal.

Out of 6 seniors completing a full year at DPS, 6 of them (100%) earned a Job Skills Certificate.

Goal Status

Check one of the following:

On Track (multi-year goal)

16. Do you have another goal for All Students Career- and College-Ready by
Graduation?

No
17. All Students Graduate
Does your district/charter enroll students in grade 12?

Yes



Goal
Provide the established SMART goal for the 2021-22 school year.

From FY19 to FY23, the aggregate percentage of students in grades 9-12 who will be on-track to graduate will be equal
to or greater than 70%.

Result

Provide the result for the 2021-22 school year that directly ties back to the
established goal.

In FY22, out of 29 high school students (grades 9-12), 24 were on track to graduate on time (82.8%).
Goal Status
Check one of the following:

On Track (multi-year goal)

18. Do you have another goal for All Students Graduate?
No



Discovery Public School of Faribault
Adjusting Journal Entries
6/30/2022

Account #
AJE #1
Depreciation Expense

For Report Purposes Only

Accumuiated Depreciation For Report Purposes Only
Leased Assets For Report Purposes Only
Long-term Liabilities For Report Purposes Only
Amortization Expense For Report Purposes Only
Accumulated Amortization For Report Purposes Only

To record additions and depreciation/amortization for reporting purposes only.

AJE #2

Proceeds from Fed PPP
Restricted/Reserved for Federal
PPP Unexpended Loan Proceeds

For Report Purposes Only

For Report Purposes Only

To record PPP loan forgiveness at 6/30/22.

AJE #3

Net Pension Liability For Report Purposes Only
Deferred Outflows of Resources For Report Purposes Only
Pension Expense For Report Purposes Only
Deferred Inflows of Resources For Report Purposes Only

TRA - To record current year net pension liability; deferred outflows and inflows of resources; and pension

expense.

AJE #4

Net Pension Liability For Report Purposes Only
Deferred Oufflow of Resources For Report Purposes Only
TRA - To reclassify prior year contributions

AJE #5

Pension Expense For Report Purposes Only
Revenue - State Aid For Report Purposes Only

TRA - Record pension expense and revenue related to direct aid contributions

AJE #6
Deferred Outflow of Resources For Report Purposes Only
Cash For Report Purposes Only

TRA - Contributions made during current year

Debit Credit

$ 520 $ -

- 520

156,479 -

- 156,479
72,752

- 72,752

$ 229,751 $ 229,751

$ - $ 115973

115,973 -

$ 115,973 $ 115,973

$ 136,766 $ -

108,271 -

- 910

- 244,127

$ 245,037 $ 245,037

$ 29,386 $ -

- 29,386

$ 29,386 $ 29,386

$ - $ 248

248 -

$ 248 $ 248

$ 30,588 $ -

- 30,588

$ 30,588 $ 30,588




Discovery Public School of Faribauit
Adjusting Journal Entries

AJE #7
Net Pension Liability
Deferred Outflow of Resources

PERA - To record contributions paid 7/1/20 - 6/30/21

z

E #
Deferred Qutflow of Resources
Pension Expense

Net Pension Liability

PERA - To record asset gain/loss

2

E #9

Net Pension Liability

Pension Expense

Deferred Outflow of Resources

PERA - To record liability experience gains/losses

AJE #10
Pension Expense
Net Pension Liability

PERA - To record remainder of expense

AJE #11

Deferred Inflow of Resources
Pension Expense

Net Pension Liability

PERA - To record actuarial assumptions

AJE #12

Deferred Inflow of Resources
Deferred Outflow of Resources
Pension Expense

PERA - Amortize prior year (FY20) deferred amounts

6/30/2022

Account #

For Report Purposes Only
For Report Purposes Only

For Report Purposes Only
For Report Purposes Only
For Report Purposes Only

For Report Purposes Only
For Report Purposes Only
For Report Purposes Only

For Report Purposes Only
For Report Purposes Only

For Report Purposes Only
For Report Purposes Only
For Report Purposes Only

For Report Purposes Only
For Report Purposes Only
For Report Purposes Only

Debit Credit
8,003 $ -
- 8,003
8,003 $ 8,003
- $ 60,525
15,131 -
45,394 -
60,525 $ 60,525
2,311 $ -
- 578
- 1,733
2,311 $ 2,311
(22,208) $ -
- (22,208)
(22,208) $ (22,208)
39,112 $ -
13,037
- 52,149
52,149 $ 52,149
8,433 $ -
- 10,507
2,074 -
10,507 $ 10,507




Discovery Public School of Faribault
Adjusting Journal Entries
6/30/2022

Account #
AJE #13
Net Pension Liability For Report Purposes Only
Deferred Inflow of Resources For Report Purposes Only
Deferred Qutflow of Resources For Report Purposes Only

Pension Expense For Report Purposes Only

Deferred Outflow of Resources For Report Purposes Only
PERA - To record change in proportion

AJE #14

Pension Expense For Report Purposes Only
Net Pension Liability For Report Purposes Only

PERA - Difference in actual vs. proportionate share contribution

AJE #15
Deferred Outflow of Resources For Report Purposes Only
Cash/Pension Expense For Report Purposes Only

PERA - To record ER contributions from 7/1/20 - 6/30/21

AJE #16

Deferred Outflow of Resources For Report Purposes Only
Deferred Inflow of Resources For Report Purposes Only
Pension Expense For Report Purposes Only

Debit Credit
$ 11,991 $ -
239 -
- 1,159
- 2,768
- 8,303
$ 12,230 $ 12,230
$ - $ 107
107 -
$ 107 $ 107
$ 8,867 $ -
- 8,867
$ 8,867 $ 8,867
$ 386 $ -
- 60
- 326
$ 386 $ 386

PERA - Amortize beginning deferred inflows and deferred outflows for changes in proportion and difference

between actual contributions and allocated contributions

AJE #17
Pension Expense For Report Purposes Only
Revenue For Report Purposes Only

$

163

$

153

$

153

$

153

Record additional pension expense and revenue for proportionate share of State of Minnesota's special funding

situation contribution.



Discovery Public School of Faribault
Adjusting Journal Entries
6/30/2022

Client approval of the adjusting journal entries, depreciation schedule, and the draft of the financial statements in
its entirety:

N W P
™)
Signed: -/ Ve

Date: 12/2/2022




DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

Year Ended June 30, 2022



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA

TABLE OF CONTENTS
INTRODUCTORY SECTION
Board of Education and Administration
A DRAE O o
FINANCIAL SECTION OVE TR O™
Fror Saorlp -
independent Auditor's Report \403@1 P‘\é)s Sl
v 5130

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Management's Discussion and Analysis
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statement of Net Position
Statement of Activities
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the
Statement of Net Position

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Govemmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual - General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual - Food Service Fund

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Scheduies of District's Share of Net Pension Liability and District's Contributions for
Defined Benefit Pension Plans

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information

Page No.

17
18-18

20

21

22

23

24

25

26-47

48 - 49

50 - 56



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA
TABLE OF CONTENTS (CONTINUED)

RP\Y"{‘ OV OF
_ouetieTREnon
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION ﬂ\‘\?o‘?\%\@?ﬁ\s oG
WO A RS o
General Fund AP %\)‘RQSS

Balance Sheet

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual

Food Service Special Revenue Fund
Balance Sheet

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual

independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Uniform Financial Accounting and Reporting Standards Compliance Table

Page No.

57

58 - 60

61

62

63 - 64

65 - 66



INTRODUCTORY SECTION



Chairperson

Vice Chairperson

Secretary/Treasurer

Director
Director
Director

Director

Executive Director

DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA
BOARD OF EDUCATION AND ADMINISTRATION

June 30, 2022 -

BOARD OF EDUCATION

ADMINISTRATION

Russ Kennedy
Jim Severson
Steven Macklay
Sharon Hansen
Kay Hammer
Cody Hanson

Kari-Ann Schmidt

Dan Weisser



FINANCIAL SECTION



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of the School Board oR \
Discovery Public Schooi of Faribault y\d‘&( P‘\%%?P&
Charter School District No. 4081 “\1\-\%‘3\)‘5

Faribault, Minnesota

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of the
Discovery Public School of Faribault Charter School District No. 4081, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Discovery Public School of Faribault
Charter School District No. 4081’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund of the Discovery Public School of Faribault
Charter School District No. 4081 as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position, and where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of Discovery Public School of Faribault Charter School District No. 4081 and to meet our ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Discovery Public School of Faribault Charter
School District No. 4081’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement
date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.



g
oA DT *

\28
“O'é&? Pg;%?
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the ﬁnancial@ﬁigh?ﬁ-\gs a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgement made by a reasonable
user based on the financial statements,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards,
we;

» Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

« Identity and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Discovery Public School of Faribauit Charter School District No. 4081's internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabieness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

+ Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the Discover Public School of Faribault Charter School District No. 4081’s ability to
continue as a going concem for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal-control related matters that we identified
during the audit.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Discovery Public Schoo! of Faribault Charter School District No. 4081’s 2021 financial
statements of the govemmental activities and each major fund, and we expressed unmodified audit opinions on those
audited financial statements in our report dated December 1, 2021. In our opinion, the summarized comparative
information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021 is consistent, in all material respects, with
the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

Required Supplementary information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis, schedules of district's share of net pension liability and district's contributions for defined benefit pension
pians, and notes to the required supplementary information on pages 5 - 16 and pages 48 — 56 be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information
for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any

-3-



assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
Discovery Public School of Faribault Charter School District No. 4081's basic financial statements. The introductory
section, the individual fund financial statements and schedules, and the Uniform Financial Accounting and Reporting
Standards Compliance Table are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other addilional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the individual fund financial statements and schedules and the Uniform Financiai
Accounting and Reporting Standards Compliance Table are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.

Other {nformation

Management is responsible far the other information included in the annual report. The other information comprises
the introductory section but does not include the basic financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our
opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or
any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and
consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial statements, or
the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude
that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 2, 2022, on our
consideration of Discovery Public School of Faribault Charter School District No. 4081’s internal controf over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the resuits of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of Discovery Public School of Faribault Charter School District No. 4081’s internal contro! over financial
reporting or oh compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering Discovery Public School of Faribault Charter School District No. 4081's internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

FL oo of
December 2, 2022 000\,\\2‘?"}@);“\0“0
o'
Owatonna, Minnesota .‘%0%\%‘(\%%&? ’
\‘\00\31 550
W



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT FLaoN o¢
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081 Ro\se\*\\g,f?:{%)g\oﬁo

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIRST < £O0% Nﬁ\’\ o ps.
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 “\,\o_‘wg,

This section of Charier School District No. 4081, Faribault, Minnesota's annual financial report presents our
discussion and analysis of the District's ﬁnanclal performance during the fiscal year that ended June 30, 2022. Please
read it in conjunction with the District's financial statements, which immediately follows this section.

The Management's Discussion and Analysis {(MD&A) is required supplementary information specified in the
Governmental Accounting Standard Board's (GASB) Statement No. 34 — Basic Financial Statements — and
Management's Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments issued in June 1999. Certain
comparative information between the current year (2021-2022) and the prior year (2020-2021) is required to be
presented in the MD&A.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Key financial highlights for the 2021-2022 fiscal year include the following:
e Net position increased by $213,089 from the prior year.
¢ Inthe statement of activities, overall revenues were $987,603 while overail expenses totaled $774,514.
¢ The General Fund balance increased by $110 and the Food Service Fund decreased by $168.

* in March 2021 the District applied for and received $115,973 in a Payroll Protection Program (PPP) loan
through the U.S. Small Business Administration under the CARES Act. If the proceeds are spent accordingly,
the District is eligible to apply for full forgiveness of this loan. As of December 13, 2021 the PPP loan was
forgiven in its entirety.

¢ The District implemented GASB Statement No. 87, Leasss, in the current year which requires that
establishment of a lease liability and related right fo use asset for all leases with a term longer than 12
months. The District is required to evaiuate each arrangement at inception to determine if it qualifies as a
long-term lease. The Statement requires recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that
previously were classified as operating leases and recognizes as inflows of resources or outflows of
resources based on the payment provisions of the contract.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial section of the annual report consists of four parts — Independent Auditor's Report, required
supplementary information which includes the management's discussion and analysis (this section), the basic
financial statements, and supplemental information. The basic financial statements include two kinds of statements
that present different views of the District:

+  The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both short-term and long-term
information about the District's overall financial status.

* The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the District, reporting the
District's operations in more detail than the government-wide statements.

*  The governmentai funds statements explain how basic services such as regular and special education were
financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending.



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NQ. 4081

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the statements and provide
more detailed data. Figure A-1 shows how the various paris of this annual report are arranged and related io one

another.
SR
Figure A-1 - Organization of Charter School District No. 4081's Annual Financial Report 69.019.\%\0_
OVORONAE
?“(,O?‘\)‘\‘e\ Q?‘e'
S Res©
YOI
e
Management's Basic Required
Discussion Financial Supplementary
and Analysis Statements Information
r_—l l
|
Government-wide Fund Notes to the
Financial Financial Financial
Statements Statements Statements
Summary <« +  Detall

Figure A-2 summarizes the major features of the District's financial statements, including the portion of the
District's activities they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this overview section
of the management's discussion and analysis highlights the structure and content of each of the statements.



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT (‘ \ \A ?
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081 O

\%
@\1 3»?
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANAL\@%

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

N «
‘\0

Figure A-2

Major Features of the Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide

Fund Financial Statements

Statements Governmental Funds

Scope Entire District The activities of the district that are not
proprietary or fiduciary, such as
special education, food service, and
building and maintenance

Required * Statement of * Balance sheet

financial net position

statements

* Statement of * Statement of revenues,
activities expenditures, and changes in fund
balances

Accounting Accrual accounting Modified accrual accounting and

basis and and economic resources current financial focus

measurement focus

focus

Type of All assets, deferred outflows Generally assets and deferred outflows

asset/ of resources, liabilities and of resources expected to be used up

liability deferred inflows of resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of

information both financial and capital, resources that come due during the

short-term and long-term. year or soon thereafter; no capital

assets or long-term liabilities are
included

Type of All revenues and Revenues for which cash is received

inflow/outflow expenses during the during or soon after the end of the

information year, regardless of when year, expenditures when goods or

cash is received or paid

services have been received and
the related liability is due and
payable




DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT ' ?}?‘ (\o \~\°?

CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081 0\30% o 1}? o,
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYS d \y:\"‘%h g
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 \;o % Pes
@\3

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS

The government-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting methods similar to
those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position inciudes all of the District's assets, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources. All of the current year's revenue and expenses
are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The two government-wide statements report the District's net position and how it has changed. Net position - the
difference between the District's assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources — is one way to'measure the District's financial health or position.

*  QOver time, increases or decreases in the District's net position are an indicator of whether its financial position is
improving or deteriorating, respectively.

= To assess the overall health of the District, you need to consider additional non-financial factors such as the
condition of the school's equipment and buildings.

In the government-wide financial statements, the District's activities are shown in one category.

*  Govermmental activities — The District's basic services are included here, such as regular and special education,
administration, food services, and support services. Federal and state aids finance most of these activities.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District's funds — focusing on its most
significant or *major” funds — not the District as a whole. Funds are accounting devices the District uses to keep track
of specific sources of funding and spending on particular programs.

The District has one kind of fund:

* Governmental funds — The District’'s basic services are included in governmental funds, which generally focus
on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and out and (2) the
balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental funds statements
provide a detailed short-term view that helps to determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources
that can be spent in the near future to finance the District's programs. Because this information does not
encompass the additional long-term focus of the district-wide statements, we provide additional information
following the governmental funds statements that explains the relationship (or differences) between them.



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081

?‘p?‘ N ¢
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSlS ,‘\0\’\

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 ?gu* [
?’?O?‘ “\)\O?P‘ '?
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE «%\ «?9

Net Position. The District's combined net position from Governmental activities was a negative $85,228 on June 30,
2022 (See Table A-1). This was an increase of $213,089 from the previous year.

Table A-1
The Distric's Net Position
Governmental Activities
as of June 30, Percent
2022 2021 Change
Current and Other Assets $ 308,384 $ 326,967 (5.68)%
Capital and Right To Use Assets 85,361 2,666 31.02
Total Assets 393,745 329,633 19.45%
Deferred Outflows of Resources 194,273 95,184 104.10%
Cumrent Liabilities 130,622 77,534 0.68
Long-Term Liabilities 334,432 646,409 (48.26)%
Total Liabilities 465,054 723,943 (35.76)%
Deferred Inflows of Resources 208,192 (809) (25,834.49)%
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital
Assets 2,154 2,666 {19.20)%
Restricted 2,095 118,573 (98.23)%
Unrestricted (89,477) (419,556) (78.67)%
Total Net Position $ (85,228) $ (298,317) (71.43)%




DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT @?"\31\0‘;‘\0?
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081 0\56“0"?‘\%\0

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED)

Changes in Net Position. The increase in net position was the result of the District's revenues being more than
expenses as presented in Table A-2 below.

Table A-2
Change in Net Position
Governmental Activities for the
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, Percentage
2022 2021 Change
Revenues
Program Revenues
Charges for Services $ 114 $ 222 {48.65)%
Operating Grants and Contributions 291,288 281,101 3.62%
Capital Grants and Contributions 66,240 66,240 0.00%
General Revenues
State Aid-Formula Grants 621,593 508,304 22.29%
Endowment Fund Apportionment 2,222 2,419 8.14)%
Gifts and Bequests 6,061 6,599 (8.15)%
Miscellaneous 85 1,638 (94.47)%
Total Revenues 987,603 866,423 0.14
Expenses
Administration 70,406 79,303 {11.22)%
District Support Services 116,700 139,543 (16.37)%
Regular instruction 244784 288,262 (15.38)%
Special Education Instruction 203,016 221,421 (8.31)%
instructional Support Services 13,206 33,147 (60.16)%
Pupil Support Services 6,348 2,339 1.71
Sites and Buildings 37,540 100,736 (62.73)%
Amortization - Unallocated 72,752 - -
Fiscal and Other Fixed
Costs Programs 9,782 9,151 6.68%
Total Expenses 774,514 874,902 (11.47)Y%
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 213,089 (8,479) {2,613.14)%
Net Position - beginning (298,317) (289,838) 0.03
Net Position - ending $ (85.228) $  (298,317) (71.43)%

-10-



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT 90??3301\0
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081 $00§0\3\‘0@1?? C
o PO
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ‘40" 3« P‘%QG?P‘
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 Qe 51?9

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED)

The District's total revenues were $987,603 for the year ended June 30, 2022 which was an increase of $121,180 from
the prior year. This increase was primarily due to an increase in state aid formula grants. See Figure A-3 below for the

related percentages of the District's revenues.

Figure A-3
Endowment Fund ___ Sources of District's Revenues for Fiscal Year 2022
Apportionment, T~ Miscellaneous,
0.22% i .
~- ... Charges for Services,
Gifts and Bequests, - 0.01%
061%
Operating Grants and
! Contributions,
29.49%
, Capital Grants and
’ Contributions, 6.71%
State Aid-Formula .}
Grants, 62.94%

The total cost of all programs and services was $774,514. The District's expenses are predominantly related to educating
and caring for students (60.34 percent) as shown in figure A-4. The purely administrative activities of the District

accounted for 9.09 percent of total costs.

Figure A4
Sites and Buildings, _._ Dlstnct Expenses for Fiscal Year 2022
20.22% Fiscal and Other
e Fixed Cost _Administration,

Pupil Support Programs, 2.06% 9.09%
Services, 0.82%_ .. __ ' —
District Support

Instructional Support . .
- Services, 15.07%

Services, 1.71%

N
r'

Special Education |
Instruction, 26.21%

‘Regular instruction,
31.60%

-11-



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT (‘ O\A
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081 \

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ?90
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 < o
$OO\S‘ Sg,%
\N“k\ 2\
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED)
Table A-3 presents the cost of eight major District activities such as administration, regular instruction, special education
instruction, and others. The table also shows each activity's net costs (total cost less fees generated by the activities and
intergovernmental aid provided for specific programs).
* The cost of all governmental activities this year was $774,514.

* Some of the cost was paid by the users of the District’s programs which totaled $114.

Table A-3
Discovery Public School of Faribault
Net Cost of Governmental Activities

Total Cost of Services Percentage Net Cost of Services Percentage
2022 2021 Change 2022 2021 Change
Governmental Activities
Administration $ 70,406 $ 79,303 (11.22)% § 70,356 $ 79,081 (11.03)%
District Support Services 116,700 139,543 {16.37)% 116,700 139,543 (16.37)%
Regular instruction 244,784 289,262 {15.38)% 148,963 199,881 (25.51)%
Special Education '
Instruction 203,016 221,421 (8.31)% 7,549 29,601 (74.50)%
Instructional Support
Services 13,206 33,147 (60.16)% 13,206 33,147 (60.16)%
Pupil Support Services 6,348 2,338 171.40% 6,284 2,338 166.66%
Sites and Buildings 37,540 100,736 (62.73)% (28,700) 34,496 (183.20)%
Amortization - Unallocated 72,752 - - 72,752 - -
Fiscal and Other Fixed
Costs Programs 9,762 9,151 6.68% 9,762 9,151 6.68%
Total Govemmental
Activities $ 774,514 $ 874,902 {(19.79)% § 416,872 $ 527,339 (20.95)%

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS

The financial performance of the District as a whole is reflected in its govemmental funds. The General Fund's revenues
and other financing sources exceeded expenditures and other financing uses in the amount of $110. In total, including
the Food Service Fund, governmental funds decreased by $59 with an ending total fund balance of $249,374.

General Fund

The General Fund is used to account for all revenues and expenditures of the District not accounted for elsewhere. The
General Fund is used to account for: grades 6 - 12 educational activities, District instructional and student support programs,
District administration, normal operation and maintenance, capital expenditures, and legal District expenditures not
specifically designated to be accounted for in any other fund,

-12-




DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081 apf? 1\0“;0?

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 300
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 o)
\N\"

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Enrollment

Funding for the District is largely driven by enroliment. There were 46 students at the beginning of the 2021 - 2022 school
year, and there were approximately 47 students on the last day of school. The school started the 2022 - 2023 school year
with 47 students and is currently at 49 students.

The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund revenues.

Year Ended Change Percent
June 30, June 30, Increase Increase
2022 2021 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Local Sources $ 6196 § 6676 % {480) (7.19)%
State Sources 777,075 777,900 {825) (0.11)%
Federal Sources 88,295 80,164 8,131 10.14%
Total Revenue $ 871,566 $ 864,740 $ 6,826 0.79%

Total General Fund revenue increased by $6,826 or 0.79% from the previous year. The increase is primarily due to an
increase in funding from Federal scurces.

The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund expenditures.

Year Ended Change Percent
June 30, June 30, Increase Increase
2022 2021 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Salaries $489,773  $ 474,843 $ 14,930 3.14%
Employee Benefits 127,513 132,708 (5,195) 3.91%
Purchased Services 146,543 206,754 (60,211) (29.12)%
Supplies/Materials 23,203 49,223 (26,020) {52.86)%
Capital Expenditures 78,058 - 78,058 -

Other Expenditures 6,265 6,783 (518) {7.64)%
$ 871,365 $ 870,311 $ 1,044 0.12%

Total General Fund expenditures increased by $1,044 or 0.12% from the previous year. This increase was largely due to an
increase in capital expenditures and salaries.

In 2021 - 2022, General Fund revenues were more than expenditures by $110 thereby increasing total fund balance by

that amount at June 30, 2022. Food Service Fund revenues were less than its revenues by $169, which decreased fund
balance by that amount. The total fund balance decreased from $249,433 at June 30, 2021 to $249,374 at June 30,2022 as a
result of the net change of $110 in the General Fund and the net change of $(169) in the Food Service Fund.

- 13-



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Figure A-5 shows the General Fund unassigned fund balance as a percentage of unrestricted expenditures.

Figure A-5 o 0_?&{3\)'_“\0\*0
General Fund Unrestricted Fund Balance 30\3 oo @‘LP\ G
as a Percentage of Unrestricted Expenditures O’( ?0%;\)‘“?:% P*s'? .
W o\)" SS
35.00% \N\—(\f\ 5«{\)
30.00% _ .
25.00% t : ;
20.00% } -L:" r -
15.00% ,-; s &
10.00% | s X %
5.00% (ud 4 3 t
- S i . b
0.00% = - ! '
2018 2020 2021 2022
Table A4
General Fund Unrestricted Fund Balance as a Percentage of Unrestricted Expenditures
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Unrestricted Fund Balance $ 131,371 $130,298 § 138,397 $ 249433 § 249,374
% Increase (Decrease) -14.00% -0.80% 6.22% 80.23% -0.02%
Total Expenditures $ 870,791 $795707 § 850,377 § 870,311 $ 871,355
% Increase 3.40% 8.60% 6.87% 2.34% 0.12%
Unrestricted Fund Balance
as a % of Total Expenditure  15.10% 16.40% 16.27% 28.66% 28.62%

The preceding table is the single best measure of overall financial heaith. The unrestricted fund balance of $249,374 at
June 30, 2022 represents 28.62% of annual expenditures. The District closely monitors its fund balances.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Over the course of the year, the District revised the annual operating budget. The budget amendments fall into two
categories:

* Implementing budgets for specially funded projects which include both federal and state grants, reinstating prior year
purchase orders being carried over, and budgeting for donations received.

* Increases in appropriations for unbudgeted revenues or expenditures.

-14-



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT € N of
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081 @p _‘\ o\‘o
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS @ 0\3\0\’51}
YEARENDED JUNE30,2022 . €9 P~‘S‘ G?ix ‘
Wortae
\“\—W\ &

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS (CONTINUED)

General Fund Budaetary Highlights (Continued)

While the District's original budget for the General Fund anticipated a $10,850 net increase in fund balance, the final budget
for the General Fund anticipated a net decrease in fund balance of $6,785. The actual results for the year show an
increase of $110.

* Actual revenues in the General Fund were $46,519 less than expected, due largely to a decrease in revenues from
federal sources.

* Actual expenditures in the General Fund were $53,515 less than expected, due largely to District Suppart Services and
Regular Instruction being lower than budgeted amounts.

Food Service Fund

The Food Service Fund realized a $169 loss. While the District's original budget for the Food Service Fund anticipated a
$3,971 net decrease in fund balance, the final budget for the Food Service Fund anticipated a net decrease of $249.

CAPITAL AND RIGHT TO USE ASSETS

By the end of fiscal year 2022, the District had net capital and right to use assets of $85,361 which consists primarily of
computer and audio-visual equipment for various instructional programs and leases (See Table A-5). More detailed information
about capital assets can be found in Note 4 to the financial statements. Total depreciation and amortization expense for the
year was $73,264.

Table A-5
Discovery Public School of Faribault
Capital Assets

Governmental Activities

2022 2021
Equipment $ 16,827 $ 17,347
Right to Use Assets 155,959 -
Less: Accumulated
Depreciation and
Amortization (87.425) (14,681)
Total $ 85,361 $ 2,666

-45.



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT AP
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081 “G\,\oﬁ"?i\%\oﬂm
OV oo ey, G
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS _&0?\? %?;5."
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 yxoo\)i s C
\N\"\)‘ 5“?‘0

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

At June 30, 2022, the District had $79,409 in long-term debt outstanding. More detailed information about the District's
long-term debt is presented in Note 7 to the financial statements.

Percentage

6/30/2022 6/30/2021 Change
Right to Use Assets $ 79409 §, - 100.00%
Promissory Note Payable - 115,973 (100.00)%
Totals $ 79409 § 115873 (31.53)%

Long-Term Liabilities

The District has a net pension fiability in the amount of $326,635 at June 30, 2022 and $530,436 at June 30, 2021. This
resulted in a decrease of $203,801 from the prior year.

FACTORS BEARING ON THE DISTRICT'S FUTURE

It is our knowledge that with the exception of voter-approved levies and other minor levies from the Faribault Public Schools,
the District is dependent on the State of Minnesota for its revenue authority. Recent experience demonstrates that legislated
revenue increases have not been sufficient to meet instructional and program needs and costs due to inflation.

The District will still try to maintain its current level of educational programming with the hope that our student population
increases and that the state will increase funding in the future. The District will continue to carry on our commitment to
academic excellence and educational opportunity for at-risk children within a framework of financial fiduciary responsibility.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, customers, creditors, and other stakeholders with a general
overview of the District's finances and demonstrate financial stability and accountability for the money received and used by
the District. If you have any questions regarding financial matters included in this report or are in search of additional
information, contact the Executive Director, Dan Weisser, Discovery Public School of Faribault District #4081, PO Box 361
or 126 8th Strest NW, Faribault, MN 55021, with a written request for information.

-16 -



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT

CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION AS OF JUNE 30, 2021)

rAE Lo
of&%@%i’\\‘@“
ASSETS FOR YHORES ¢
Cash v&Og 1 P\\S% el
Receivables \N\T\)‘ 5’(@0

Accounts Receivable
Due from MN Department of Education
Due from Federal Government
Due from Federal Directly
Prepaid ltems
Capital Assets
Capital and Right of Use Assets, Net of Depreciation
and Amortization

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflows - Pension Payments

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Salaries Payable
Payroll Deductions Payable
Current Portion of Long-Term Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities
Net Pension Liability
Noncurrent Portion of Long-Term Liabilities
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows - Pensions

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital and Right to Use Assets
Restricted for:
Food Service
Safe Schools Levy
Paycheck Protection Plan
Unrestricted

Total Net Position
See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

-17 -

Governmental Activities

2022 2021

$ 150,639 $ 194,903
1,829 3,148
60,412 74,453
72,127 23,288
6,570 9,962
16,807 21,213
85,361 2,666
393,745 329,633
194,273 95,184
11,623 10,424
20,655 36,737
17,732 30,373

71,612 -
130,622 77,634
326,635 530,436
7,797 115,973
334,432 646,400
485,054 723,943
208,192 (809)
$ 85,361 $ 2,666
- 505
2,095 2,095
- 115,973
(172,684) (419,556)
$  (85228) $  (298,317)




DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(WITH SUMMARIZED FINQNCIAL‘WF@RMATION FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021)

"\ %

Functions

Governmental Activities
Administration
District Support Services
Regular Instruction
Special Education Instruction
Instructional Support Services
Pupil Support Services
Sites and Buildings
Amortization - Unallocated
Fiscal and Other Fixed Costs Programs

Total School District

2022
Program
Operating
Charges for Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions
$ 70,406 $ 50 $ -
116,700 - -
244,784 - 95,821
203,016 - 195,467
13,206 - -
6,348 64 -
37,540 - -
72,752 - -
9,762 - -
774,514 114 291,288

General Revenues
State Aid Not Restricted to
Specific Purposes
Endowment Fund Apportionment
Gifts and Bequests
Miscellaneocus
Total General Revenues

Changes in Net Position
Net Paosition - Beginning

Net Position - Ending

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

-18 -



2021

Net (Expense) Net (Expense)
Revenue and Revenue and
Changes in Changes in
Revenues Net Position Net Position
Capital Total Total
Grants and Governmental Govermnmental
Contributions Activities Activities
$ - $ (70,356) $ (79,081)
- (116,700) (139,543)
- (148,963) (199,981)
- (7,549) (29,601)
- {13,208) (33,147)
- (6,284) (2,339)
66,240 28,700 (34,496)
- (72,752) -
- (9,762) (9,151)
£6,240 (416,872) (527,339)
621,593 508,304
2,222 2,419
6,061 6,599
85 1,638
629,961 518,860
213,080 (8,479)
(298,317) (289,838)
$ (85,228) $ (298,317)

-19-



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022
(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION AS OF JUNE 30, 2021)

Major Funds Total Governmental Funds
General Food Service 2022 2021
ASSETS
Cash $ 150,639 $ - $ 150,639 $ 194,903
Receivables
Accounts Receivable 1,829 - 1,829 3,148
Due from MN Department of
Education 60,412 - 60,412 74,453
Due from Federal Government 72,127 - 72127 23,288
Due from Federal Directly 6,570 - 6,570 9,962
Prepaid Items 16,471 336 16,807 21,213
Total Assets $ 308,048 $ 336 $ 308,384 $ 326,967
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 11,623 $ - $ 11,623 $ 10,424
Salaries Payable 29,655 - 29,655 36,737
Payroll Deductions Payable 17,732 - 17,732 30,373
Total Liabilities 59,010 - 59,010 77,534
Fund Balance
Nonspendable 16,471 336 16,807 21,213
Restricted for;
Food Service - - - 505
Safe School Levy 2,085 - 2,095 2,085
Unassigned 230,472 - 230,472 225,620
Total Fund Balance 249,038 336 249,374 249,433
Total Liabilities and Fund
Balance $ 308,048 $ 336 $ 308,384 $ 326,967
&"\ .«f\OV“* \4
IR R N N-aNe
O R0
EPRNS) UL G
WL g PP
1 '({\‘% a’i ‘\ it

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
-20-



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION AS OF JUNE 30, 2021)

2022 2021
Total Fund Balance for Governmental Funds $ 249,374 $ 249,433
Total net position reported for governmentai
activities in the statement of net position is RPF(
different because: 0 ue \g ‘R\g\f N QF‘
Capital assets used in governmental funds “O«; FOEUT\'\OPP:S‘P G-
are not financial resources and therefore are t Ny U cP
not reported in the funds. Those assets WW TR
consists of:
Equipment, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 2,154 2,666
Right of Use Assets, Net of Accumulated Amartization 83,207 -
Long-term liabilities, are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the govemmental
funds. Long-term liabilities at year-end consist of:
Long-Term Debt - - (115,973)
Right of Use Lease Liabilities {79,409) -
The District's Net Pension Liability and related deferred inflows and
outflows are recorded only on the Statement of Net Position.
Balances at year end are:
Net Pension Liability (326,635) (530,436)
Deferred Inflows of Resources - Pensions (208,192) 809
Deferred Qutflows of Resources - Pensions 194,273 85,184
Total Net Position of Governmental Activities $ (85,228) $ (298,317)

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
-21-



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT A ,\O\\\\ of
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081 SRR
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA \56"&\549%\\1}? G
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, \10 AN
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE ?ﬂ %\5 e
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CoSens
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 r“ a C»‘
(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION AS OF JUNE 30, 2021)
Major Funds _ Total Governmental Funds
General Food Service 2022 2021
REVENUES
Local Sources $ 6,196 $ - $ 6,196 $ 7.181
State Sources 777,075 - 777,075 777,900
Federal Sources 88,295 - 88,295 81,213
Sales and Other Conversion
of Assets - 64 64 -
Total Revenues 871,566 64 871,630 866,294
EXPENDITURES
Administration 78,200 - 78,200 79,080
District Support Services 133,086 - 133,086 139,048
Regular Instruction 291,520 - 291,520 287,367
Special Education tnstruction 230,086 - 230,086 220,492
Instructional Support Services 16,694 - 16,694 33,147
Pupil Support Services 6,262 334 6,596 2,339
Sites and Buildings 105,745 - 105,745 100,736
Fiscal and Other Fixed Costs
Programs 9,762 - 9,762 9,151
Total Expenditures 871,355 334 871,689 871,360
Excess of Revenues Over
Expenditures 211 (270) (59) (5,066)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
(USES)
Transfers in - 101 101 -
Proceeds from Long-Term
Debt - - - 115,973
Insurance Recovery - - - 129
Transfers out (101) - (101) -
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) (101) 101 - 116,102
Net Change in Fund Balance 110 (169} (69) 111,036
Fund Balance - Beginning 248,928 505 249,433 138,397
Fund Balance - Ending $ 249,038 $ 336 $ 249,374 $ 249,433

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements,
-29.



A 1\0\“‘
A D@V ot
DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT RSN
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081 %0991\(\0?{‘,5," :
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA ONS N%cé e
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPEND@&S%@G
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021)

2022 2021

Net Changes in Fund Balance - Total Governmental Funds $ (59) 3 111,036

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the
statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.

However, in the statement of activities, assets, with an initial,

individual cost of more than $500 for furniture and

equipment and buildings and improvements are capitalized,

and the cost is allocated over their estimated useful lives and

reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by

which capitalized outiays exceeds depreciation expense

in the period.
Capital Outiays - -
Depreciation and Amortization Expense (73,264) (513)

Repayment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure in
governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term
liabilities on the Statement of Net Position. In the current
period these amounts consist of:
Repayment of Right to Use Lease 70,918 -

Long-term borrowing is reported as revenue (other financing
sources) in governmental funds, but these proceeds increase
long-term liabilities on the Statement of Net Position. In the
current period these amounts consisted of;
Proceeds from Long-Term Debt - (115,973)

Forgiveness of loans recognized as long-term lizbilities on the
Staterment of Net Position in prior periods is shown as revenue on
the Statement of Activities in the the period the liability is legally
released.
Paycheck Protection Program Loan Forgiveness 115,973 -

Pension expenditures on the governmental funds are measured

by current year employee contributions. Pension expenses on

the Statement of Activities are measured by the change in

Net Pension Liability and the related deferred inflows and

outflows of resources. 99,521 (3,029)

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 213,089 $ (8,479)

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
-23-



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT 0\36\)‘\21@\%“
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081 ? D0 e
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA [ Pe
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITUREti(\A\O 9\)
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET ANDIRCTUAL
GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

2022
Over (Under)
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final
Original Final Amounts Budget
REVENUES
Local Sources $ 8,773 $ 9,274 $ 6,196 $ {(3,078)
State Sources 815,510 774,981 777,075 2,094
Federal Sources 114,927 133,830 88,295 (45,535)
Total Revenues 939,210 918,085 871,566 {(46,519)
EXPENDITURES
Current
Administration 90,890 76,797 78,200 1,403
District Support Services 160,568 151,010 133,086 (17,924)
Regular Instruction 289,912 332,260 291,520 (40,740)
Special Education instruction 219,445 223,689 230,086 6,397
Instructional Support Services 14,490 15,232 16,694 1,462
Pupil Support Services 35,172 9,358 6,262 (3.096)
Sites and Buildings 107,433 106,074 105,745 (329)
Fiscal and Other Fixed Costs
Programs 10,450 10,450 8,762 (688)
Total Expenditures 928,360 924,870 871,355 (53,515)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers out - - 101 101
Total Other Financing Sources - - 101 101
Net Change in Fund Balance $ 10,850 $ (6,785) 110 $ 7,097
Fund Balance
Beginning of Year 248,928
End of Year $ 249,038

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
-24 -



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081 SEL O
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA o a0t
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND go“?p\% :
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL  ¥OL\T¥ opS:

ﬁ
FOOD SERVICE FUND > \)\O\P\, ?‘\)55
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 WWHT et
2022
Over (Under)
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final
Original Final Amounts Budget
REVENUES
Local Sources $ - $ - $ - $ -
State Sources 1,000 - - -
Federal Sources 6,000 - - -
Sales and Other Conversion -
of Assets 1,438 - 84 64
Total Revenues 8,438 - 64 64
EXPENDITURES
Pupil Support Services 12,409 249 334 85
Total Expenditures 12,409 249 334 85
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in - - 101 101
Total Other Financing Sources - - 101 101
Net Change in Fund Balance $ (3.971) $ (249) (169) $ 80
Fund Balance
Beginning of Year 505
End of Year $ 336

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
-25 .



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT

CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081 9}* v\o?
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA RO 7}
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTSRO G O N o
JUNE 30, 2022 S <0 < \S; ng °
N}
ﬁ\,‘\,\Os,‘?‘\)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of Charter School District No. 4081 have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental
units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The GASB pronouncements are
recognized as accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for state and local
governments.

B. Financial Reporting Entity

Charter School District No. 4081 (the District) is an instrumentality of the State of Minnesota established to
function as an educational institution. The elected School Board (Board) is responsible for legislative and
fiscal control of the District. A Superintendent is appointed by the Board and is responsible for adminisirative
control of the District.

U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) require that the District's financial statements include
all funds, departments, agencies, boards, commissions, and other organizations which are not legally
separated from the District. In addition, the District's financial statements are to include all component units -
entities for which the District is financially accountable.

Financial accountability includes such aspects as appointing a voting majority of the District's governing body,
significantly influencing the programs, projects, activities or level of services performed or pravided by the
District or receiving specific financial benefits from, or imposing specific financial burden on, the District.
These financial statements include all funds and account groups of the District. There are no other entities for
which the District is financially accountable.

Student activities are determined primarily by student participants under the guidance of an aduit and are
generally conducted outside schoo! hours. The School Board does have a fiduciary responsibility in
establishing broad policies and ensuring that appropriate financial records are maintained for student
activities. In accordance with Minnesota State Stafutes, the District's School Board has elected to control or
exercise oversight responsibility with respect to the underlying student activities. Accordingly, the student
activity accounts are included in these financial statements as part of the General Fund.

C. Basic Financial Statement Presentation

The Government-wide financial statements (i.e. the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities)
display information about the reporting government as a whole. These statements include ali the financial
activities of the District.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include charges to customers or applicants who purchase,
use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and grants
and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function
of segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues.

-26-



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081 ?J’X:‘ “\0\&0?

FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA ORI
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS _ \\OO&IR R (.
JUNE 30, 2022 UL OV R, ¢
X P P

ﬁpcﬁsgﬁﬁ
W@
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINU@S} S

C. Basic Financial Statement Presentation (CONTINUED)

The District applies restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for purpose for which both
restricted and unrestricted net position is available. Depreciation expense that can be specifically identified
by function is included in the direct expenses of each function. Interest on long-term debt is considered an
indirect expense and is reported separately on the Statement of Activities. Generally, the effect of material
interfund activity has been removed from the Government-wide financial statements.

Separate Fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds. Major individual governmental
funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied is determined by its measurement focus and basis of
accounting. The govemment-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar
items are recognized when all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this basis of accounting, transactions are recorded
in the following manner:;

1. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when it becomes measurable and available. “Measurable® means the amount of
the transaction can be determined and “available” means collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. State revenue is recognized in the
year fo which it applies according to Minnesota Statutes and U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles. Minnesota Statutes include state aid funding formulas for specific fiscal years. Federal
revenue is recorded in the year in which the related expenditure is made. Food service sales and other
miscellaneous revenue are recorded as revenues when received because they are generaily not
measurable until then. A six-month availability period is generally used for other fund revenue.

2. Recording of Expenditures
Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred. However, expenditures are recorded as
prepaid for approved disbursements or liabilities incurred in advance of the year in which the item is to be
used.

Description of Funds
The existence of the various District funds has been established by the State of Minnesota, Department

of Education. The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is
considered a separate accounting entity. Descriptions of the funds included in this report are as follows:

-27 -



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022
RPELAON ¥
NSRSTRE RO
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) S ,‘?{;oi\%\-\%?s‘?vo‘
WYt )
D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (CONTINUED) W\;{\’\C‘)‘;—)gaﬂs

Major Governmental Funds

General Fund

The General Fund is used to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in
another fund. Itincludes the general operations and pupil activities of the district, as well as the capital
related activities such as maintenance of facilities, equipment purchases, health and safety projects, and
disabled accessibility projects.

Food Service Special Revenue Fund
The Food Service Fund is used to account for food service revenues and expenditures. Revenues for the

Food Service Fund are generated from user fees and federal and state aids.

E. Income Taxes

The District is classified as a tax-exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code
and comparable sections of the Minnesota income tax statutes.

F. Budgeting
Budgets presented in this report for comparison to actual amounts are presented in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles. Reported budget amounts represent the originally adopted budget
as revised. The original budget and any revisions require approval of the School Board.

Total fund expenditures in excess of the budget require approval of the School Board. Spending control is
established by the amount of expenditures budgeted for the fund, but management control is exercised at line
item levels.

Budget amounts include mid-year budget amendments that changed revenue and expenditure budgets as

follows:
Original Amended
Budget Amendments Budget
Revenues
General Fund $ 939,210 3 {21,125) $ 918,085
Special Revenue Funds:
Food Service Fund 8,438 (8,438) 3 -
Expenditures
General Fund 928,360 (3,490) $ 924,870
Special Revenue Funds:
Food Service Fund 12,409 (12,160) $ 249
G. Cash

Cash consists of a non-interest bearing checking account. Cash balances for all funds of the District are
maintained on a combined basis. Any earnings from such deposits are allocated to the respective funds on
the basis of applicable cash balance participation by each fund.

-28-



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT'
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081 ?J"\ﬁ AN of
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA W Oaes ot
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  _,3h8% Qs G
JUNE 30, 2022 ARt A
\Aoo\.\" N
W@
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUEE)

H. Receivables

Represents amounts receivable from individuals, firms, and corporations for goods and services furnished by
the District. No substantial losses are anticipated from present receivable balances; therefore, no allowance
for uncollectible accounts is deemed necessary.

. Prepaid Items

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepayments. Prepaid items are reported using the consumption method and recorded as an expense or
expenditure at the time of consumption.

J. Defined Benefit Pension Plans

Teachers Retirement Association

For purposes of measuring the net position liability, deferred outflowsfinflows of resources, and pension
expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Teachers Retirement Association (TRA) and
additions to/deductions from TRA's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they
are reported by TRA.

TRA has a special funding situation created by direct aid contributions made by the State of Minnesota, City
of Minneapolis and Minneapolis School District. The direct aid is a result of the merger of the Minneapolis
Teachers Retirement Fund Association merger into TRA in 2006. A second direct aid source is from the
State of Minnesota for the merger of the Duluth Teacher's Retirement Fund Association in 2015.

Public Employees Retirement Association

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, and pension
expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA)
and addifions to/deductions from PERA’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as
they are reported by PERA. For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized as of employer payroll paid
dates and benefit payments, and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

K. Capital Assets

Capital assets are capitalized at historical cost, or estimated historical cost for assets where actual historical
cost is not available. Donated assets are recorded as capital assets at their estimated fair market value at the
date of donation. The District maintains a threshold level of $2,500 or more for capitalizing capital assets.

The cost of normai maintenance and repairs that do not add fo the value of the asset or materially extend
asset lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets are recorded in the Government-wide financial statementis, but are not reported in the fund
financial statements. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful lives for equipment are five to twenty years.

The District does not possess any material amounts of infrastructure capital assets.

-929-



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT <

CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081 ¥
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA g K

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %00 05L&

JUNE 30, 2022 X

e

\'ﬂ‘(\og‘i?‘
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUES)\

L. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents
a consumption of net position that applies to a fufure period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The District has items that qualify for reporting in this category
related to the recording of defined pension benefits as further explained in Note 6,

In addition to liabilities, the financial statements will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows
of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenug) until that time. The District also has items that qualify for reporting in this category
related to the recording of defined pension benefits as further explained in Note 6.

M. Unpaid Sick and Personal Leave

Unpaid sick and personal leave has not been accrued in any funds as these benefits do not vest to
employees.

N. Fund Balance

In the fund financial statements, fund balance is divided into five classifications based primarily on the extent
to which the district is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of resources reported in
governmental funds. These classifications are as follows:

Nonspendable - consists of amounts that cannot be spent because it is not in spendable form, such as
prepaid items.

Restricted — consists of amounts related to externally imposed constraints established by creditors,
grantors or contributors; or constraints imposed by state statutory provisions.

Committed - consists of amounts that are constrained for specific purposes that are internally imposed by
formal action (resolution) of the Board of Directors. Those committed amounts cannot be used for any
other purpose unless the Board of Directors removes or changes the specified use by taking the same
type of action it employed to previously commit those amounts.

Assigned — consists of amounts intended to be used by the District for specific purposes but do not meet
the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. In governmental funds other than the General
Fund, assigned fund balance represents the remaining amount that is not restricted or committed. In the
General Fund, assigned amounts represent intended uses established by the Board of Directors itself or
by an official to which the Board of Directors delegates the authority. Pursuant to Board of Directors
resolution, the District is authorized to establish assignments of fund balance.

Unassigned - is the residual classification for the General Fund and also reflects negative residual
amounts in other funds. '

The District currently has nonspendable, restricted, and unassigned fund balances.

Restricted funds are used first when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted funds are available.

-30-



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT

GHARTER SCHOOL. DISTRICT NO. 4081 SN of
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA \3\0"23%\3"1\0\*
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS \CEUods G-
JUNE 30, 2022 f*?o%\)«&p,e.
WO 0\)" 55‘5

e

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTlNUEﬁ"\" ©

0.

Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters, and workers compensation. The District
purchases commercial insurance coverage for such risks.

There has been no significant reduction in insurance coverage from the previous year in any of the District's
policies. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past
three fiscal years.

Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources and fiabilities and
deferred inflows of resources in the government-wide financial statements. Net investment in capital assets
consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of any long-
term debt used %o build or acquire the capital assets. Net position is reported as restricted in the government-
wide financial statement when there are limitations imposed on its use through external restrictions imposed
by creditors, grantors, laws or regulations of other governments.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumgptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Summarized Comparative Information

The basic financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in total but not
at the level of detall required for a presentation in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.
Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the government's financial statements for the
year ended June 30, 2021, from which the summarized information was derived. Certain comparative
information has been reclassified to conform with the curreni year presentation.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities. Existing long-term debt is reported at the face value of
remaining indebtedness.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize the amount of debt issued as other
financials sources, Principal payments are reported as debt service expenditures,

Leases
The District accounts for leases under GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. This requires the establishment of a

lease fiability and related right to use assets for all leases with a term longer than 12 months. The District
evaluates each arrahgement at inception to determine if it qualifies as a iong-term lease.

-31-



1
DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT \)\09’}%\)1\%?}\ of
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081 QOUGO\51%@1 o
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA < cOR 51 pSs
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WO\ it Rog CP
JUNE 30, 2022 QEPRY®

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
T. Leases {Continued)

The District capitalizes right to use assets at the present value of the lease payments over the lease term at
the commencemeant date. Right to use assets are recorded in the government-wide financial statements, but
are not reported in the fund financial statements. Right of use assets are amortized using the straight-line
method over the term of the lease.

The District records long-term leases at the present value of the lease payments over the lease term at the
commencement date. Lease payments may include fixed and variable payment amounts. The District
determines the relevant lease term by evaluating whether renewal and termination options are reasonably
certain to be exercised. If it is not explicitly stated in the agreement, the District uses a discount rate based
on the value of the asset or their incremental borrowing rate to calculated the present value of the lease
payments.

Payments on leases with a term of less than 12 months are recorded as expenditures at the time of payment.

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Expenditures did not exceed budgeted amounts in the General Fund or the Food Service Fund at June 30, 2022.

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS

The District maintains a cash pool that is available for use by all funds. Each fund type’s portion of this pool is
displayed on the statement of net position and the balance sheet as “Cash.” In accordance with Minnesota
Statutes, the District maintains deposits at depository banks authorized by the School District's Board.

Custodial Credit Risk — Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District's
deposits may not be returned in full. The District's deposit policy for custodial credit risk follows Minnesota
Statutes for deposits. Minnesota Statutes require that all deposits be protected by insurance, surety bond, or
collateral. The market value of collateral pledged must equal 110% of the deposits not covered by insurance or
corporate surety bonds. As of June 30, 2022, the District's bank balance was not exposed to custodial credit risk
because it was insured and properly collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust
department or agent and in the District's name.

-32-



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081

FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA quf‘\)ﬂ\%
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS G\?\ «?1\%1}2‘\0
JUNE 30, 2022 ?*O(\))@Of\e\o@% °:
ORI
NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS \‘\X\/\V\O%«@\)
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 was as follows:
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases  Decreases Balance
Governmental Activities;
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated $ - $ - $ - $ -
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated
Equipment 17,347 - (520) 16,827
Right of Use Assets, Being Amortized
Leased Building - 138,534 - 138,534
Leased Office Equipment - 17,425 - 17,425
Total Right of Use Assets, Being
Amortized - 155,959 - 155,959
Accumulated Depreciations for:
Equipment (14.681) (512) 520 (14,673)
Accumulated Amortization for:
Leased Building - {69,267) - (69,267)
Leased Office Equipment - (3,485) - (3,485)
Total Accumulated Depreciation and
Amortization (14,681) {73,264) 520 {87,425)
Total Capital and Right of Use Assets,
Being Depreciated and Amortized, Net 2666 82,695 - 85,361
Governmental Activities Capital and Right of
Use Assets, Net $ 2666 $ 82,695 $ - $ 85,361
Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the District as follows:
Govemmental Activities:
Regular Instruction $ 452
Special Education Instruction 80
Unallocated 72,752
Total Depreciation and Amortization Expense, Governmental Activities

-33-

5 73284



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT @g«“ O[O
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA o

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS f;o‘?;\)«
JUNE 30, 2022 RN

NOTE § — FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATION

Fund Equity
Certain portions of fund balances are restricted based on state requirements to track special program funding, to

provide for funding on certain long-term liabilities, or as required by other outside parties. The following is a
summary of the restricted fund balance for the governmental fund:

A. 8afe Schools Levy
This fund balance represents unspent resources available from the safe schools levy.

At June 30, 2022, a summary of the governmental fund balance classifications is as follows:

Food
General Service
Fund Fund Total
Nonspendable:
Prepaid Expenditures $ 16471 $ 336 $ 16,807
Restricted for:
Safe Schools Levy 2,085 - 2,095
Unassigned: 230,472 - 230,472
Total Fund Balance: $ 249,038 $ 336 $ 249,374

NOTE & — PENSION PLANS

Substantially all employees of the District are required by state law to belong to a pension plan administered by
Teachers Retirement Association (TRA) or Public Employees Retirement Assaciation (PERA), all of which are
administered on a statewide basis. Disclosures relating to these plans follow:

A. Teachers Retirement Association (TRA)

1. Plan Description
The Teachers Retirement Association (TRA) is an administrator of a multiple employer, cost-sharing,

defined benefit retirement fund. TRA administers a Basic Plan (without Social Security coverage) and a
Coordinated Plan (with Social Security coverage) in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 354
and 356. TRA is a separate statutory entity and administered by a Board of Trustees. The Board
consists of four active members, one retired member and three statutory officials.

Educators employed in Minnesota’s public elementary and secondary school, charter schools, and certain
other TRA-covered educational institutions maintained by the state are required to be TRA members
(except those employed by St. Paul schools or Minnesota State Colleges and Universities). Educators
first hired by Minnesota State may elect either TRA coverage or coverage through the Defined
Contribution Plan (DCR) administered by State of Minnesota.

-34-



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT

CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081 S ¢
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA qjg’\ N0
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS o0 ?390 0
JUNE 30, 2022 Shetalle &
RN
NOTE 6 - PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) wé?)\o\}?@\)eg
X
A. Teachers Retirement Association (TRA) (CONTINUED) (o

2. Benefits Provided
TRA provides retirement benefits as well as disability benefits to members, and benefits to survivors upon
death of eligible members. Benefits are established by Minnesota Statute and vest after three years of
service credit. The defined retirement benefits are based on a member's highest average salary for any
five consecutive years of allowable service, age, and a formula multiplier based on years of credit at
termination of service.

Two methods are used to compute benefits for TRA's Coordinated and Basic Plan members. Members
first employed before July 1, 1989, receive the greater of the Tier | or Tier Il benefits as described.

Tier I Benefits
Tier | Step Rate Formula Percentage
Basic First ten years of service 2.2 percent per year
All years after 2.7 percent per year
Coordinated First ten years if service years are up t0 1.2 percent per year
July 1, 2006
First ten years if service years are July 1, 2006 1.4 percent per year
or after
All other years of service if service years are 1.7 percent per year
up to July 1, 2006
All other years of service if service years are 1.9 percent per year

July 1, 2006 or after
With these provisions:

a) Normal retirement age is 65 with less than 30 years of allowable service and age 62 with 30 or more
years of aliowable service.

b} 3 percent per year early retirement reduction factor for all years under normal retirement age.

¢) Unreduced benefits for early retirement under a Rule-of-80 (age plus allowable service equals 90 or
more).

or
Tier il Benefits

Far years of service prior to July 1, 2006, a level formula of 1.7 percent per year for coordinated members
and 2.7 percent per year for basic members is applied. For years of service July 1, 2006 and after, a
level formuia of 1.9 percent per year for Coordinated members and 2.7 percent for Basic members
applies. Beginning July 1, 2015, the early retirement reduction factors are based on rates established
under Minnesota Statute. Smaller reductions, more favorable to the member, will be applied to
individuals who reach age 62 and have 30 years or more of service credit.

Members first empioyed after June 30, 1989, receive only the Tier ll calculation with a normal retirement
age that is their retirement age for full Social Security retirement benefits, but not to exceed age 66.

-35-



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT

CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081 S
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA ?}?‘\)ﬂ\o\\\o
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS P Ha©
JUNE 30, 2022 ?\0\)?\0\5% 09\\'1‘_;“? G
RS op®”
QO e
NOTE 6 ~ PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) \:‘\%\*\Oeﬂ?s\}

A. Teachers Retirement Association (TRA) (CONTINUED)

2. Benefits Provided {(CONTINUED)
Six different types of annuities are available to members upon retirement. The No Refund Life Plan is a
lifetime annuity that ceases upon the death of the retiree — no survivor annuity is payable. A retiring
member may also choose to provide survivor benefits to a designated beneficiary(ies) by selecting one of
the five plans that have survivorship features. Vested members may also leave their contributions in the
TRA Fund upon termination of service in order to qualify for a deferred annuity at retirement age. Any
member terminating service is eligible for a refund of their employee contributions plus interest.

The benefit provisions stated apply to active plan participants. Vested, terminated employees who are
entitied to benefits but not yet receiving them are bound by the plan provisions in effect at the time they
last terminated their public service.

3. Contribution Rate
Per Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 354 sets the contribution rates for employees and employers. Rates for
each fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, June 30, 2021, and June 30, 2022 were:

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2021 June 30, 2022
Employee Employer Employee Employer Employee Employer
Basic 11.00% 11.92% 11.00% 12.13% 11.00% 12.34%
Coordinated 7.50% 7.92% 7.50% 8.13% 7.50% 8.34%

The foliowing is a reconciliation of employer contributions in TRA's fiscal year 2021 CAFR "Statement of
Changes in Fiduciary Net Position" to the employer contributions used in Schedule of Employer and Non-
Employer Pension Allocations.

Employer contributions reported in TRA's CAFR,

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position $ 448,829,000
Add employer contributions not related to future contribution efforts 379,000
Deduct TRA's contributions not included in allocation (538.000)
Total employer contributions $ 448,670,000
Total non-employer contributions 37.840.000

Total contributions reported in Schedule of Employer and
Non-Employer Allocations $ 486,510,000

Amounts reported in the allocation schaedules may not precisely agree with financial statement amounts
or actuarial valuations due to the number of decimal places used in the allocations. TRA has rounded
percentage amounts to the nearest ten thousandths.

-36-



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA BN
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS O\)G G ?L\'LP‘ G-
JUNE 30, 2022 YO e

NOTE 6 - PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)
A. Teachers Retirement Association {TRA) (CONTINUED)
4. Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2021, actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement.

Key Methods and Assumptions Used in Valuation of Total Pension Liability

Actuarial information

Valuation date July 1, 2021
Measurement date June 30, 2021
Experience study June 5, 2019 {demographic assumptions)
November 6, 2017 (economic assumptions)
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of retum 7.00%
Price inflation 2.50%
Wage growth rate 2.85% before July 1, 2028 and 3.25% after June 30,
2028
Projected salary increase 2.85% to 8.85% before July 1, 2028 and 3.25% to
9.25% after June 30, 2028
Cost of living adjustment 1.0% for January 2020 through January 2023, then
increasing by 0.1% each year up to 1.5% annually,
Mortality Assumptions
Pre-retirement: RP-2014 white collar employee table, male rates set

back six years and female rates set back five years.
Generational projection uses the MP-2015 scale.

Post-retirement: RP-2014 white collar annuitant table, male rates set
back three years and female rates set back three
years, with further adjustments of the rates.
Generational projection uses the MP-2015 scale.

Post-disability: RP-2014 disabled retiree mortality table, without
adjustment.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected retums, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class, These ranges
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected infiation.

The target aliocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are
summarized in the following table:

Long-Term Expected

Real Rate of Return

Asset Class Target Allocation _(Geometric Mean)
Domestic Equity 36.50% 5.10%
International Equity 17.50% 5.30%
Private Markets 25.00% 5.90%
Fixed Income 20.00% 0.75%
Unallocated Cash 2.00% 0.00%

Total 100.00%

-37-



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081

FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA ?&‘?‘\34\0‘;\ of
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OO
JUNE 30, 2022 %8 0?‘\76}? O
O WEcer
S
NOTE 6 - PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) @\,‘\,\Osﬂg,\)

A. Teachers Retirement Association (TRA) (CONTINUED)

4

Actuarial Assumptions (CONTINUED)

The TRA actuary has determined the average of the expecied remaining service lives of all members for
fiscal year 2022 is six years. The Difference between Expected and Actual Experience, Changes of
Assumptions, and Changes in Proportion use the amortization period of six years in the schedule
presented. The amortization period for Nef Difference between Projected and Actual Investment
Earnings on Pension Plan Investments is five years as required by GASB 68.

Changes in actuarial assumptions since the 2020 valuation:

s For GASB Valuation:
o The investment return assumption was changed from 7.50 percent to 7.00 percent.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00 percent. The discount rate used to
measure the TPL at the Prior Measurement Date was 7.50 percent. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the fiscal year 2021
contribution rate, contributions from school districts will be made at contractually required rates
(actuarially determined), and contributions from the state will be made at current statutorily required rates.
Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was not projected to be depleted
and, as a result, the Municipal Bond Index Rate was not used in the determination of the Single
Equivalent Interest Rate (SEIR).

Net Pension Liability
On June 30, 2022, Discovery Public School of Faribauit reported a liability of $262,578 for its

proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30,
2021, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of that date. Discovery Public School of Faribault's proportion of the net pension
liability was based on Discovery Public School of Faribault’s coniributions to TRA in relation to total
system contributions including direct aid from the State of Minnesota, City of Minneapolis and
Minneapolis School District. District proportionate share was 0.0060% at the end of the measurement
period and 0.0058% for the beginning of the year.

The pension liability amount reflected a reduction due to direct aid provided to TRA. The amount
recognized by the disfrict as its proportionate share of the net pension liability, the direct aid, and total
portion of the net pension liability that was associated with the district were as follows:

District's proportionate share of net pension liability $ 262,578
State's proportionate share of the net pension liability associated
with the district $ 22,125

-38 -



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081

FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA O oF
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS o e on
JUNE 20, 2022 O\)o‘é\\gﬂ(%q}é G-
< ¢O P\\)ﬂ\)‘cg?‘ '
NOTE 6 — PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) WL e
\ﬂ\“\(\ A

A. Teachers Retirement Association (TRA) {(CONTINUED)

6. Net Pension Liability (Continued)
For the year ended June 30, 2022, the district recognized pension expense of $(910). It also recognized
$(248) as an increase to pension expense for the support provided by direct aid.

On June 30, 2021, Discovery Public School of Faribauit had deferred resources related to pensions from
the following sources:

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ - $ 3,285

Net difference between projected and actual investment earnings

on pension plan investments - 240,842
Changes of assumptions 95,958 -
Changes in proportion 12,313 -
Contributions paid to TRA subsequent to the measurement date 30,588 -

Total $ 138,859 $ 244,127

Deferred outflows of resources and (deferred inflows of resources) will be recognized in pension expense

as follows:
2022 $ (39213)
2023 $ (39,213)
2024 $ (39,213)
2025 $ (39,213)
2026 $ 20,996

7. Pension Liability Sensitivity
The following presents the net pension liability of TRA calculated using the discount rate of 7.00 percent,
as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one
percentage point lower (6.00 percent) or one percentage point higher (8.00 percent) than the current rate.

Sensitivity of Net Pension Liabiity (NPL) to
changes in the discount rate

1 percent 1 percent
decrease Current increase
{6.00%) (7.00%) {8.00%)

$ 530,420 $ 262,578 $ 42926

The Discovery Public School of Faribauit's proportion of the net pension liability was based on the
employer contributions to TRA in relation to TRA's total employer contributions including direct aid
contributions from the State of Minnesota, City of Minneapolis and Minneapolis School District.

-39-



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081

FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA @S’fg\o‘t\ of
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS o DBl 0
JUNE 30, 2022 ?\0\3@0\‘3\ o?‘\g? G-
0% NS
< ¢ NN
WL (e
NOTE 6 - PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) \N\"“\Oe‘?‘\)

A. Teachers Retirement Association (TRA) (CONTINUED)

8. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the plan’s fiduciary net position is available in a separately-issued TRA
financial report. That report can be obtained at www.MinnesotaTRA.org, by writing to TRA at 60 Empire
Drive, Suite 400, St. Paul, MN 55103-4000; or by calling 651-296-2409 or 800-657-3669.

B. Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA)

1.

Plan Description
The District participates in the following cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans

administered by the Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA). PERA's defined benefit pension
plans are established and administered in accordance with Minnesota Sfatutes, Chapters 353 and 356.
PERA's defined benefit pension plans are tax qualified plans under Section 401(a) of the internal
Revenue Code.

General Employees Retirement Plan
The General Employees Retirement Plan covers certain full time and part-time employees of the

Discovery Public School of Faribault Charter School District No. 4081. General Employees Plan
members belong to the Coordinated Plan. Coordinated Plan members are covered by Social Security.

Benefits Provided

PERA provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are established by state
statute and can only be modified by the state Legislature. Vested, terminated employees who are entitled
to benefits, but are not receiving them yet, are bound by the provisions in effect at the time they last
terminated their public service,

General Employees Plan Benefits
General Employees Plan benefits are based on a member’s highest average salary for any five

successive years of alfowable service, age, and years of credit at termination of service. Two methods are
used to compute benefits for PERA’'s Coordinated Plan members. Members hired prior to July 1, 1989,
receive the higher of Method 1 or Method 2 formulas. Only Method 2 is used for members hired afier
June 30, 1989. Under Method 1, the accrual rate for Coordinated members is 1.2 percent of average
salary for each of the first 10 years of service and 1.7 percent of average salary for each additional year.
Under Method 2, the accrual rate for Coordinated members is 1.7 percent of average salary for all years
of service. For members hired prior to July 1, 1989, a full annuity is available when age plus years of
service equal 90 and normal retirement age is 65. For members hired on or after July 1, 1989, normal
retirement age is the age for unreduced Social Security benefits capped at 66.

Benefit increases are provided to benefit recipients each January. The postretirement increase is equal
fo 50 percent of the cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) announced by the SSA, with a minimum increase of
at least 1 percent and a maximum of 1.5 percent. Recipients that have been receiving the annuity or
benefit for at least a full year as of the June 30 before the effective date of the increase will receive the full
increase. Recipients receiving the annuity or benefit for at least one month but less than a full year as of
the June 30 before the effective date of the increase will receive a reduced prorated increase. For
members retiring on January 1, 2024, or later, the increase will be delayed until normal retirement age
{age 65 if hired prior to July 1, 1989, or age 66 for individuals hired on or after July 1, 1989). Members
retiring under Rule of 90 are exempt from the delay to normal retirement.

-40-



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT < o of
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081 R ©
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA 4 0 Cia®
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  (\O&" N
JUNE 30, 2022 R 0«9??‘5‘
A

NOTE 6 — PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) \E\\\Z«\ S
B. Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) (CONTINUED)

3. Contributions
Minnesota Statutes Chapter 353 sets the rates for employer and employee contributions. Contribution
rates can only be modified by the state Legislature.

General Employees Fund Contributions

Coordinated Plan members were required to contribute 6.50 percent of their annual covered salary in
fiscal year 2021 and the District was required to contribute 7.50 percent for Coordinated Plan members.
The District's contributions to the General Employees Fund for the year ended June 30, 2022, were
$8,867. The District's contributions were equal to the required contributions as set by state statute.

4. Pension Costs
General Emplovees Fund Pension Costs
At June 30, 2021, the District reported a liability of $64,057 for its proportionate share of the General
Employees Fund's net pension liability. The District's net pension fiability reflected a reduction due to the
State of Minnesota’s contribution of $16 million. The State of Minnesota is considered a non-employer
contributing entity and the state’s contribution meets the definition of a special funding situation. The
State of Minnesota’s proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the District totaled
$1,898.

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the fotal pension liability used to .
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The District's
proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on the District's contributions received by PERA
during the measurement period for employer payroll paid dates from July 1, 2020, through June 30, 2021,
relative to the total employer contributions received from all of PERA's participating employers. The
District's proportionate share was 0.0015 percent at the end of the measurement period and 0.0017
percent for the beginning of the period.

The District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 64,057
State of Minnesota's proportionate share of the net

pension liability associated with the District 1,898
Total $ 65955

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the District recognized pension expense of $5,382 for its proportionate
share of the General Employees Plan’s pension expense. In addition, the District recognized $153 as
grant revenue for its proportionate share of the State of Minnesota’s pension expense for the annual $16
million contribution.

-41 -



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT

CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081

FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 6 — PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)
B. Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) (CONTINUED)

4. Pension Costs (Continued)

As of June 30, 2022, the District reported its proportionate share of the General Employees Plan's
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following

sources:

Differences between expected and actual economic experience
Changes in actuarial assumptions

Difference between projected and actual investment earnings
Changes in proportion

Contributions paid to PERA subsequent to the measurement date

Total

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
$ (89) $ (1,991)

38,426 {1,945)

- (30,449)

8,210 (1,550)
8,867 -

$ 55414 $ (35,935)

The $8,867 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the District's
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension
liability in the year ended June 30, 2023, Other amounts reported as deferred outfiows and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended
June 30,
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
Thereafter

Total Pensicn Expense

Pension

Expense

Amount
$ 24,086

19,986
7,601

The total pension expense for all plans recognized by the District for the year ended June 30, 2022, was

$(4,459).

-42-



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT

CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081 AN ¢
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA \gi\ O\QO
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS K 9\ ’Dﬁ\
JUNE 30, 2022 e @9\5 R ®
<ORTG b
NOTE 6 ~ PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) \qO ) 05
\N\ﬁ‘(\ &

B. Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) (CONTINUED)

5. Long-Term Expected Return on Investment
The State Board of investment, which manages the investments of PERA, prepares an analysis of the

reasonableness on a regular basis of the long-term expected rate of return using a building-block method
in which best-estimate ranges of expected future rates of return are developed for each major asset
class. These ranges are combined to produce an expected long-term rate of return by weighting the
expected future rates of return by the target asset allocation percentages. The target allocation and best
estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following

table:
Asset Class Target Allocation (Geometric Mean)
Domestic Equity 33.5% 5.10%
International Equity 16.5% 5.30%
Fixed Income 25.0% 0.75%
Private Markets 25.0% 5.90%
Total 100%

6. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
The total pension liability in the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuation was determined using an individual

entry-age normal actuarial cost method. The long-term rate of return on pension plan investments used
in the determination of the total liability is 6,5 percent. This assumption is based on a review of inflation
and investments return assumptions from a number of national investment consulting firms. The review
provided a range of return investment return rates deemed to be reasonable by the actuary. An
investment return of 6.5 percent was deemed to be within that range of reasonableness for financial
reporting purposes.

Inflation is assumed to be 2.25 percent for the General Employees Plan, Benefit increases after
retirement are assumed {0 be 1.25 percent for the General Employees Plan

Salary growth assumptions in the General Employees Plan range in annual increments from 10.25
percent after one year of service to 3.0 percent after 29 years of service and 6.0 percent per year
thereafter.

Mortality rates for General Employees Plan are based on the Pub-210 General Employee Mortality Table.
The table is adjusted slightly to fit PERA's experience.

Actuarial assumptions for the General Employees Plan are reviewed every four years. The most recent
four-year experience study for the General Employees Plan was completed in 2019. The assumption
changes were adopted by the Board and became effective with the July 1, 2020 actuarial valuation.

The following changes in actuarial assumptions and plan provisions occurred in 2022:

General Employees Fund
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions:
* The investment return and single discount rates were changed from 7.50 percent to 6.50 percent,
for financial reporting purposes.
s The mortality improvement scale was changed from Scale MP-2019 to Scale MP-2020.

Changes in Plan Provisions:
o There were no changes in plan provisions since the previous valuation.

-43-




DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081

FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA N oF
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS A TaEax o
JUNE 20, 2022 ?\0\)?(:90\5’\0@\1% -
s ‘*&:C’?P ‘
NOTE 6 — PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) DX
\N\fi gt

B. Public Employees Retirement Association {(PERA) (CONTINUED)

7. Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability in 2021 was 6.50 percent. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and
employers will be made at rates set in Minnesota Statutes. Based on these assumptions, the fiduciary
net positions of the General Employees Fund was projected to be available to make all projected future
benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension

liability.
8. Pension Liability Sensitivity

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability for all plans it
participates in, calculated using the discount rate disclosed in the preceding paragraph, as well as what
the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount
rate one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current discount rate:

Sensitivity Analysis
Net Pension Liability (Asset) at Different Discount Rates
Current
Discount
1% Lower Rate 1% Higher
(5.5%) (6.50%) (7.50%)
General Employees Fund $ 9419 $ 64,057 $ 130,643

9. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in a separately-issued

PERA financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That
report may be obtained on the Internet at www.mnpera.org.

NOTE 7 — LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Pension Benefits Payable
Pension Benefits Payable represent the District’s proportionate share of the state pension plans’ net pension

liability at June 30, 2022. From a District perspective, this liability can only be reduced through its annual required
contributions to the pension plans, which are paid by the General Fund and Food Service Fund.

Payroll Protection Program Loan
The District has a Payroll Protection Program loan effective March 31, 2021 and matures March 31, 2026, at an

interest rate of 1.0% through the U.S. Small Business Administration (SBA). Per SBA requirements, the proceeds
of the loan could be used to pay payroll, rent, and utilities with some stipulations. At June 30, 2021 all funds had
been expended. If used appropriately, the District is eligible to have all of the loan forgiven. This is a debt to the
District until officially forgiven by SBA. The District's loan was forgiven on December 13, 2021.




DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT ?\p&“‘ .ﬂ\o\‘;o"v

CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081 V@ <0
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA 0\)@6\\5‘?@7}; o
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SR8
JUNE 30, 2022 \\\oﬁ N S 560
g\"\’\gs"?“

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

A. Description of Long-Term Debt
Long-term Jiability balances and activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 were as follows:

Original Maturity Debt
Interest Rate Amount Date Outstanding
Governmental Activities:
Long-Term Lease Liabilities
Right to Use Leases

Building 6.42% $ 138,534 2023 $ 68,103
Office Equipment 6.42% 17,425 2023 11,306
Total Outstanding Long-Term Debt $ 79,408

Long-Term Lease Liabilities (Right to Use Assets)

Building

The District entered into a 3 year lease agreement in June 2020 for the use of the building located in Faribauit,
Minnesota. The lease agreement has required monthly principal and interest payments of $6,133.33 throughout
the term of the lease. The lease liability is measured at a discount rate of 6.42%, as estimated by the District
based on its incremental borrowing rate. The total cost of the right of use asset for this lease agreement was
determined to be $138,534. Total accumulated amortization on this right of use asset was $69,267. Principal and
interest payments on this lease are recorded in the General Fund. Interest paid in the 2021 — 2022 fiscal year
was $6,170.

Office Equipment
The District entered into a 5 year lease agreement in February 2021 for the use of a copier. The lease agreement

has required monthly principal and interest payments of $359 throughout the term of the lease. The lease liability
is measured at a discount rate of 6.42%, as estimated by the District based on its incremental borrowing rate.

The total cost of the right of use asset for this lease agreement was determined to be $17,425. Total

accumulated amortization on this right of use asset was $3,485. Principal and interest payments on this lease are
recorded in the General Fund. Interest paid in the 2021 — 2022 fiscal year was $3,488.

These assets serve as collateral for the related right of use lease liability and are being amortized using a straight-
line method over the life of the right to use asset.

—45-



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT

CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081 P«‘? O ¢
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA \)\ ‘?‘ "«\ov\
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS V% ?‘\7} o
JUNE 30, 2022 ?‘?o@ ﬂ\,\o A
W ‘G\) cF
NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) '\N\v\ ©

B. Minimum Debt Payments

Minimum annual principal and interest payments on the right fo use leases as of June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Building Office Equipment
Principal Interest Principal Interest
Year Ending June 30
2023 $ 68,103 $ 2,497 $ 3,509 $ 799
2024 - - 3,741 567
2025 - - 3,088 320
2026 - - 68 2,804
Total $ 68,103 $ 2,497 $ 11,306 S 4,490
C. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities
Amounts
Beginning Ending Due within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental Activities:
Paycheck Protectrion Program
(PPP) Loan $ 115,973 $ - $ (115,973) $ - $ -
Right to Use Leases
Building - 135,533 (67,430) 68,103 68,103
Office Equipment - 14,794 (3.488) 11,306 3,509
Net Pension Liability 530,436 52,365 {256, 166) 326,635 -

$§ 646,409 $ 202,602 $ (443,057) $ 406,044 $ 71,612

NOTE 8 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
A. Federal and State Programs
Amounts received or receivable from federal and slate agencies are subject to agency audit and adjustment.
Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable fund.
The amount, if any, of funds which may be disallowed by the agencies cannot be determined at this time
although the District expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.
B. Contingencies

The District is subject to legal proceedings and claims which arise in the ordinary course of business.
Management believes the resolution of these matters will not have a material impact on the District.



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT 2 nON of
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081 Ko 7J,g\O
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA ) ?\0\509\ ¢ O
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢ YOS 1 0p®:
JUNE 30, 2022 WOt

NOTE 9 - LINE OF CREDIT

The District has an unused $40,000 cash advance on a credit card at a local financial institution with an annual
interest rate of 26.990% that is charged on a monthly basis. The balance on the cash advance line was $0 as of
June 30, 2022. Interest expense for the year ended June 30, 2022 was $0.

NOTE 10 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The District does not offer employees other post-employment benefits.

NOTE 11 — GASB STANDARD ISSUED BUT NOT YET IMPLEMENTED

GASB Statement 96, Subscription-Based information Technology Agreements Leases was issued to provide
guidance on the accounting and financial report for subscription-based information technology agreements
(SBITAs) for government end users. This Statement requires the District to disclose descriptive information about
its SBITAs other than short-term SBITAs, such as the amount of the subscription asset, accumulated
amortization, other payments not included in the measurement of a subscription liability, principal and interest
requirements for the subscription liability, and other essential information. Statement No. 96 is effective for
implementation for the year ended June 30, 2023,

NOTE 12 - CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE

The District implemented GASB Statement 87, Leases in the current year which better meets the information
needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments,
The Statement requires recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified
as operating leases and recognizes as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment
provisions of the contract. Prior year partial comparative information does not reflect this change in accounting
principle because prior years have not been recalculated under GASB Statement No. 87.

NOTE 13 - EVALUATION OF SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In preparing these financial statements, the District has evaluated events and transactions for potential recognition
or disclosure through December 2, 2022, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

-47 -



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT

FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA
SCHEDULES OF DISTRICT'S SHARE OF NET PENSION
LIABILITY AND DISTRICT'S CONTRIBUTIONS FOR DEFINED
BENEFIT PENSION PLANS
June 30, 2022

CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY

District's
State's Proportionate
District's District's Proportionate Share of the Plan
Proportion Proportionate Share (Amount) Net Pension Fiduciary Net
{Percentage) Share of the Net Liability Position as a
of the Net (Amount) of the = Pension Liability (Asset) as a Percentage
Fiscal Pension Net Pension {Asset) District's Percentage of  of the Total
Year Liability Liability (Asset)  Associated with Covered its Covered Pension
Ending (Asset) (a) District (b) Total (a+b) Payroll (c) Payroll (a/c) Liability
6/30/2021 0.0060% § 262,578 $ 22125 § 284,703 $ 391,813 67.0% 86.63%
6/30/2020 00058% § 428,512 $ 35990 § 464,502 $ 375973 114,.0% 75.48%
6/30/2019 0.0055% § 350,571 $ 31,003 $ 381,664 $ 308,160 113.8% 78.07%
6/30/2018 00064% $ 401,980 $ 37,760 $ 439,740 $§ 370,680 108.4% 78.07%
6/30/2017 0.0053% §$ 1,057,976 $ 102,054 $ 1,160,030 $ 286,307 369.5% 51.57%
6/30/2016 0.0053% § 1.264,176 $ 126,194 $ 1,390,370 $ 276,680 456.9% 44 88%
6/30/2015 00053% $ 327,857 $ 40,552 $§ 368409 $ 266,053 123.2% 76.80%
6/30/2014 00060% §$ 276,476 $ 19,383 $ 295859 § 272,960 101.3% 81.50%

Note: Schedule is intended to show 10-year trend. Additional years will be reported as they become availabie.

TEACHERS RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions in Contributions
Relation to the asa
Statutorily Statutorily Contribution District's Percentage of
Fiscal Year Required Required Deficiency Covered Covered
Ending Contribution (a)  Contribution (b)  (Excess) {a-b) Payroll (d) Payroll (b/d)
6/30/2022 $ 30,588 $ 30,588 $ - $ 376,236 8.13%
6/30/2021  $ 29,386 $ 29,386 $ - $ 371,035 7.92%
6/30/2020 § 28,198 $ 28,198 $ - $ 375,973 7.50%
6/30/2018 % 23,112 $ 23,112 § - $ 308,160 7.50%
6/30/2018 § 27,801 $ 27,801 3 - $ 370,680 7.50%
6/20/2017 § 21,473 $ 21,473 $ - $ 286,307 7.50%
6/30/2016 § 20,761 $ 20,751 $ - $ 276,680 7.50%
6/30/2015 § 19,954 $ 19,954 $ - $ 266,053 7.50%

Note: Schedule is intended to show 10-year trend. Additional years will be reported as they become available.

See accornpanying notes to the required supplementary information.

-48 -



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT

FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA

CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081

SCHEDULES OF DISTRICT'S SHARE OF NET PENSION PS;( ‘ Q\Q‘
LIABILITY AND DISTRICT'S CONTRIBUTIONS FOR DEFINED G\)‘ 'O"R \6\5‘\ o
BENEFIT PENSION PLANS QOVTET ST
June 30, 2022 <0 0«\0 NS
WO P OF
T
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION
SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY
District's
Proportionate
Share of the Plan Fiduciary
District's District's Net Pension Net Position
Proporfion Proportionate Liability asa

(Percentage) of Share (Amount) (Asset) as a Percentage of

the Net of the Net District's Percentage of the Total

Fiscal Year Pension Pension Liability Covered its Covered Pension

Ending Liability (Asset) (Asset) (a) Payroll (b) Payroll (a/b) Liability
6/30/2021 0.0015% § 64,057 $ 106,709 60.0% 87.0%
6/30/2020 0.0017% % 101,923 $ 121,233 84.1% 79.1%
6/30/2019 0.0011% & 60.817 $ 80,812 75.3% 80.2%
6/30/2018 0.0012% & 66,571 $ 82,577 80.6% 79.5%
6/30/2017 0.0012% § 76,607 $ 78,862 97.0% 75.9%
6/30/2016 0.0013% § 105,554 $ 79,720 132.4% 68.9%
6/30/2015 0.0012% % 62,180 $ 73,548 84.6% 78.2%
6/30/2014 0.0015% § 70,462 $ 80,384 87.1% 78.8%

Note: Schedule is intended to show 10-year trend. Additional years will be reported as they become available.
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION
SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S CONTRIBUTIONS
Contributions in Contributions
Relation to the asa

Statutorily Statutorily Contribution District's Percentage of

Fiscal Year Required Required Deficiency Covered Covered

Ending Contribution (a)  Contribution (b))  (Excess) (a-b) Payroll (d) Payroll (b/d)

6/30/2022 % 8,867 $ 8,867 $ - $ 118,227 7.5%
6/30/2021 8,003 $ 8,003 $ - $ 106,709 7.5%
6/30/2020 % 9,093 $ 9,093 $ - $ 121,233 7.5%
6/30/2019 & 6,061 $ 6,081 $ - $ 80,812 7.5%
6/30/2018 § 6,193 $ 6,193 $ - $ 82,577 7.5%
6/30/2017 § 5,922 $ 5,922 $ - $ 78,962 7.5%
6/30/2016  $ 5,979 $ 5,979 $ - $ 79,720 7.5%
6/30/2015 § 5,438 $ 5438 $ - $ 73,548 7.4%

Nole: Schedule is intended to show 10-year trend. Additional years will be reported as they become available.

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.

-49 -



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

A. Teachers Retirement Association

The following changes were made by the Minnesota Legislature and reflected in the valuation performed as of
July 1 listed below:

Changes of Benefit and Funding Terms

o of
2021 Changes ?}&“\5‘\ O*O

W a®ist

\)G %" \’I,P‘ .
e None <0 (OO
“?Oq;\)ﬂ‘e\g?"‘
2020 Changes @00\)" e
NS\
g o

* None ‘
20119 Changes
* None

2018 Changes — The 2018 Omnibus Pension Bill contained a number of changes:

¢ The COLA was reduced from 2.0% each January 1 to 1.0%, effective January 1, 2019. Beginning January 1,
2024, the COLA will increase 0.1% each year until reaching the ultimate rate of 1.5% in January 1, 2028.

= Beginning July 1, 2024, eligibility for the first COLA changes to normal retirement age (age 65 to 66,
depending on date of birth). However, members who retire under Rule of 90 and members who are at least
age 62 with 30 years of service credit are exempt.

e The COLA trigger provision, which would have increased the COLA to 2.5% if the funded ratioc was at least
80% for two consecutive years, was eliminated.

» Augmentation in the early retirement reduction factors is phased out over a five-year period beginning July 1,
2019 and ending June 30, 2024 (this reduces early retirement benefits). Members who retire and are at least
age 62 with 30 years of service are exempt.

» Augmentation on deferred benefits will be reduced to zero percent beginning July 1, 2019. Interest payable
on refunds o members was reduced from 4.0% to 3.0%, effective July 1, 2018. Interest due on payments
and purchases from members, employers is reduced from 8.5% to 7.5%, effective July 1, 2018.

s The employer contribution rate is increased each July 1 over the next 6 years, (7.71% in 2018, 7.92% in
2019, 8.13% in 2020, 8.34% in 2021, 8.55% in 2022, 8.75% in 2023). In addition, the employee contribution
rate will increase from 7.50% to 7.756% on July 1, 2023. The state provides funding for the higher employer
contribution rate through an adjustment in the school aid formula,

2017 Changes
= None
2016 Changes

» None

-50-



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA

NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ?1 O$ <
JUNE 30, 2022 o yIE WO
AR
O O3 o?%% o
NOTE 1 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued) \&01 &? P*“S‘%\)\O?P\ )
A. Teachers Retirement Association (Continued) \‘\\((‘\05‘\9“\)5

2015 Changes

» The Duluth Teachers Retirement Fund Association was merged into TRA on June 30, 2015. This also
resulted in a state-provided contribution stream of $14.377 million until the System becomes fully funded.

2014 Changes

* The increase in the post-retirement benefit adjustment (COLA) will be made once the System is 90% funded
{on a market value basis) in two consecutive years, rather than just one year.

Changes in Actuarial Assumptions
71112021 Valuation

s For GASB valuation:
o The investment return assumption was changed from 7.50% to 7.00%.

7/1/2020 Valuation

* Assumed termination rates were changed to more closely reflect actual experience.
The pre-retirement mortality assumption was changed to the RP-2014 white collar employee table, male rates
set back 5 years and female rates set back 7 years. Generational projection uses the MP-2015 scale.

e Assumed form of annuity election proportions were changed to more closely reflect actual experience for
female retirees.

71112019 Valuation

¢ None

7/112018 Valuation

¢ The investment return assumption was changed from 8.50% to 7.50%.

¢ The price inflation assumption was lowered from 3.00% to 2.50%.

« The payroll growth assumption was lowered from 3.50% to 3.00%.

« The wage inflation assumption (above price inflation) was reduced from 0.75% to 0.35% for the next 10 years,

and 0.75% thereafter.

The total salary increase assumption was adjusted by the wage inflation change.

¢ The amortization date for the funding of the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) was reset to June
30, 2048 (30 years).

e A mechanism in the law that provided the TRA Board with some authority to set contribution rates was
gliminated.

Note: Most of these changes were made previously for GASB purposes in the 2017 GASB valuation.

-51-



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

JUNE 30, 2022 ?o( o$0?
G\’\
NOTE 1 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued) ?\? \)QQ:%\ 7)‘
D
A. Teachers Retirement Association (Continued) \40“ \5" %55
- \34\"\‘\ 9—@
71112017 Valuation

¢ The Cost of Living Adjustment was assumed to increase from 2,0% annually to 2.5% annually on July 1,
2045.

s Adjustments were made to the combined service annuity loads. The active load was reduced from 1.4% to
0.0%, the vested inactive load increased from 4.0% to 7.0% and the non-vested inactive load increased from
4.0% to 9.0%.

For GASB Valuation
» The investment return assumption was changed from 8.00% to 7.50%.
The COLA was not assumed o increase to 2.5%, but remain at 2.0% for all future years.
The price inflation assumption was lowered from 2.75% to 2.50%.
The payroll growth assumption was lowered from 3.50% to 3.00%.

71112017 Valuation (Continued)

» The general wage growth assumption was lowered from 3.50% to 2.85% for 10 years followed by 3.25%,

thereafter.
» The salary increase assumption was adjusted to reflect the changes in the general wage growth
assumption.
711/12016 Valuation

The Cost of Living Adjustment was not assumed to increase (it remained at 2% for all future years).

The price inflation assumption was lowered from 3.00% to 2.75%.

The generai wage growth and payroll growth assumptions were lowered from 3.76% to 3.5%.

Minor changes at some durations for the merit scale of the salary increase assumption.

The pre-retirement mortality assumption was changed to the RP-2014 white collar employee table, male rates

set back 6 years and female rates set back 5 years. Generational projection uses the MP-2015 scale.

» The post-retirement mortality assumption was changed to the RP-2014 white collar annuitant table, male
rates set back 3 years and female rates set back 3 years, with further adjustments of the rates. Generational
projection uses the MP-2015 scale.

» The post-disability mortality assumption was changed to the RP-2014 disabled retiree mortality table, without
adjustment.

o Separate retirement assumptions for members hired before or after July 1, 1989 were created to better refiect
each group’s behavior in light of different requirements for retirement eligibility.

+ Assumed fermination rates were changed to be based solely on years of service in order to better fit the
observed experience.

» A minor adjustment and simplification of the assumption regarding the election of optional forms of payment

at retirement were made.

-52-



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

JUNE 30, 2022 S ?}‘(E) "\O% 0?
06\'\\5‘?‘\%1}‘\8
NOTE 1 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS {(Continued) 'S‘goa\%\,\o??;&‘?, :
. - . WO ) P\g":‘:c’
A. Teachers Retirement Association {Continued) \ﬂ\.‘\e\% ,‘3\)
7/1/2015 Valuation
» The Cost of Living Adjustment was assumed to increase from 2.0% annually to 2.5% annually on July 1,
2037.
For GASB Valuation

* The COLA was not assumed to increase to 2.5%, but to remain at 2.0% for ail future years,
s The investment return assumption was changed from 8.25% to 8.00%.

7/1/2014 Valuation

e The Cost of Living Adjustment was assumed to increase from 2.0% annually to 2.5% annuaily once the
legally specified criteria was met. This was estimated to occur July 1, 2031.

For GASB Valuation
s The Cost of Living Adjustment was assumed to increase from 2.0% annually to 2.5% annually on July 1,
2034.

B. Public Employees Retirement Association

The following changes were reflected in the valuation performed on behalf of the Public Employees Retirement
Association for the years ended June 30:

General Employees Fund

2021 Changes

Changes in Actuarial Assumptions

= The investment return and single discount rates were changed from 7.50 percent to 6.50 percent, for financial
reporting purposes.

e The mortality improvement scale was changed from Scale MP-2019 to Scale MP-2020.

Changes in Plan Provisions
s  There were no changes in plan provisions since the previous valuation.

-53-



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2022

03"‘?‘5)"\0\*0?
NOTE 1 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued) 9\0\563\6"?\5\3"%\8.
O ’
B. Public Employees Retirement Association (Continued) gt ?,??pt\yg\g? pSr
NS
General Employees Fund (Continued) WSt

2020 Changes

Changes in Actuarial Assumptions

The price inflation assumption was decreased from 2.50% to 2.25%.

The payrofl growth assumption was decreased from 3.25% to 3.00%.

Assumed salary increase rates were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019 experience study. The
net effect is assumed rates that average 0.25% less than previous rates.

Assumed rates of retirement were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019 experience study. The
changes result in more unreduced (normal) retirements and slightly fewer Rule of 90 and early retirements.
Assumed rates of termination were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019 experience study. The
new rates are based on service and are generally lower than the previous rates for years 2-5 and slightly
higher thereafter.

Assumed rates of disability were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019 experience study. The
change results in fewer predicted disability retirements for males and females.

The base mortality table for healthy annuitants and employees was changed from the RP-2014 tabie to the
Pub-2010 General Mortality table, with adjustments. The base mortality table for disabled annuitants was
changed from the RP-2014 disabled annuitant mortality table to the PUB-2010 General/Teacher disabled
annuitant mortality table, with adjustments.

The mortality improvement scale was changed from Scale MP-2018 to Scale MP-2019.

The assumed spouse age difference was changed from two years older for females to one year older.

The assumed number of married male new retirees electing the 100% Joint & Survivor option changed from
35% to 45%. The assumed number of married female new retirees electing 100% Joint & Survivor option
changed from 15% to 30%. The corresponding number of married new retirees electing the Life annuity
option was adjusted accordingly.

Changes in Plan Provisions:

Augmentation for current privatized members was reduced to 2.0% for the period July 1, 2020 through
December 31, 2023 and 0.0% after. Augmentation was eliminated for privatizations occurring after June 30,
2020.

2018 Changes

Changes in Actuarial Assumptions

The morality projection scale was changed from MP-2017 to MP-2018.

Changes in Plan Provisions

The employer supplemental contribution was changed prospectively, decreasing from $31.0 million to $21.0
million per year. The State’s special funding contribution was changed prospectively, requiring $16.0 million
due per year through 2031.

-54 -



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2022

?ﬂ 1\0“ 0?
NOTE 1 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued) 06@2%%\8“
OO AR .
B. Public Employees Retirement Association (Continued) O,&‘(()%\\%\’\C% P&,?
S
General Employees Fund (Continued) \‘gé\(\og}ﬂ@\)%

2018 Changes

Changes in Actuarial Assumptions

» The morality projection scale was changed from MP-2015 to MP-2017.

« The assumed benefit increase was changed from 1.00 percent per year through 2044 and 2.50 percent per
year thereafter to 1.25 percent per year.

Changes in Plan Provisions

o The augmentation adjustment in early retirement factors is eliminated over a five-year period starting July 1,
2019, resulting in actuarial equivalence after June 30, 2024.

» Interest credited on member contributions decreased from 4.00 percent to 3.00 percent, beginning July 1,
2018.

s Deferred augmentation was changed fo 0.00 percent, effective January 1, 2019. Augmentation that has
already accrued for deferred members will still apply.
Contribution stabilizer provisions were repealed.
Postretirement benefit increases were changed from 1.00 percent per year with a provision to increase to
2.50 percent upon attainment of 90.00 percent funding ratio to 50.00 percent of the Social Security Cost of
Living Adjustment, not less than 1.00 percent and not more than 1.50 percent, beginning January 1, 2019,

¢ Forretirements on or after January 1, 2024, the first benefit increase is delayed until the retiree reaches
normal retirement age; does not apply to Rule of 90 retirees, disability benefit recipients, or survivors.

+ Actuarial eguivalent factors were updated to reflect revised mortalify and interest assumptions.

2017 Changes

Changes in Actuarial Assumptions

» The combined service annuity (CSA) loads were changed from 0.80 percent for active members and 80.00
percent for vested and non-vested deferred members. The revised CSA load are now 0.00 percent for active
member liability, 15.00 percent for vested deferred member liability, and 3.00 percent for non-vested deferred
member liability.

» The assumed postretirement benefit increase rate was changed for 1.00 percent per year for all years to 1.00
percent per year through 2044 and 2.50 percent per year thereafter.

Changes in Plan Provisions

s The State's contribution for the Minneapolis Employees Retirement Fund equals $16,000,000 in 2017 and
2018, and $6,000,000 thereafter.

» The Employer Supplemental Contributicn for the Minneapolis Employees Retirement Fund changed from
$21,000,000 to $31,000,000 in calendar years 2019 to 2031. The state’s contribution changed from
$16,000,000 to $6,000,000 in calendar years 2019 to 2031.

-55-



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2022

ao“hgﬁ\%ﬁo‘:
NOTE 1 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued) goggo\‘\i‘o?{;\gg G
vOLut W
B. Public Employees Retirement Association (Continued) ﬂoggﬁ S‘%«s coP
WG

General Employees Fund (Continued)
2016 Changes

Changes in Actuarial Assumptions

» The assumed postretirernent benefit increase rate was changed from 1.00 percent per year through 2035 and
2.50 percent per year thereafter to 1.00 percent per year for all years.

¢ The assumed investment return was changed from 7.90 percent to 7.50 percent. The single discount rate
changed from 7.90 percent fo 7.50 percent.

s  Other assumptions were changed pursuant fo the experience study June 30, 2015. The assumed future
salary increases, payroll growth, and inflation were decreased by 0.25 percent to 3.25 percent for payroll
growth and 2.50 percent for inflation.

Changes in Plan Provisions
¢ There have been no changes since the prior valuation.

2015 Changes

Changes in Actuarial Assumptions
« The assumed postretirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.00 percent per year through 2030 and
2.50 percent per year thereafter to 1.00 percent per year through 2035 and 2.50 percent per year thereafter.

Changes in Plan Provisions

¢ On.January 1, 2015, the Minneapolis Employees Retirement Fund was merged into the General Employees
Fund, which increased the total pension liability by $1.1 billion and increase the fiduciary plan net position by
$892 million. Upon consolidation, state and employer contributions were revised; the State’s contribution of
$6.0 million, which meets the special funding situation definition, was due September 2015.

-56-



SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA
GENERAL FUND
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2022
(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION AS OF JUNE 30, 2021)

2022 2021
ASSETS
Cash $ 150,639 $ 194,334
Receivables
Accounts Receivable < N 1,829 3,148
Due from MN Department of Education ¥ O of 60,412 74,453
Due from Federal Government ROt 72,127 23,268
Due from Federal Directly R SR v © 6,570 9,962
Prepaid Items \“Oé 5 p%% ceh 16,471 21,213
1 ?\
Total Assets A $ 308048 5 326,398
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 11,623 $ 10,424
Salaries Payable 29,655 36,673
Payroll Deductions Payable 17,732 30,373
Total Liabilities 59,010 77,470
FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable 16,471 21,213
Restricted for:
Safe School Levy 2,095 2,095
Unassigned 230,472 225,620
Total Fund Balance 249,038 248,928
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 308,048 $ 326,398

-57-



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081

FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA gp\\’—" O of
GENERAL FUND \% S 7}1\0\
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND  ®O ?‘O\%O?‘\
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE ) ?ﬂ Rtas
BUDGET AND ACTUAL PO QU5
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 WG
(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021)
2022 2021
Over (Under)
Final Budget Actual Amounts Final Budget Actual Amounts
REVENUES
Local Sources
Fees from Patrons $ - $ 50 $ 50 $ 222
Gifts and Bequests 6,500 6,061 (439) 6,094
Miscellaneous 2774 85 (2,689) 360
9,274 6,196 (3,078) 6,676
State Sources
Endowment Fund Apportionment - 2,222 2,222 2,419
General Education Aid 509,232 505,620 (3,612) 508,304
Special Education Aid 191,984 195,467 3,483 191,820
Building Lease Aid 66,241 66,240 N 66,240
Miscellaneous 7,524 7,526 2 9,117
774,981 777,075 2,094 777,900
Federal Sources
Title | 28,201 28,201 - 15,115
Title 1l 7,057 2,000 (5,057) -
Miscellaneous 98,572 58,094 (40,478) 65,049
133,830 88,295 (45,535) 80,164
Total Revenues 918,085 871,566 (46,519) 864,740
EXPENDITURES
Administration
Salaries 58,748 62,455 3,707 63,000
Employee Benefits 10,189 9,986 {203) 9,784
Purchased Services - - - -
Supplies and Materials 40 29
Other Expenditures 7,820 5,730 (2,090) 6,296
Total Administration 76,797 78,200 1,414 79,080
District Support Services
Salaries 47,081 49,466 2,385 49,203
Employee Benefits 27,7986 20,995 (6,801) 21,670
Purchased Services 67,113 53,979 (13,134) 58,503
Supplies and Materials 8,886 8,612 (374) 9,185
Other Expenditures 134 134 - 487
Total District Support
Services 151,010 133,086 (17,924) 139,048

-58 -



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT

R0
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ANB YO 151
W5 Wa o

CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081

FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA
GENERAL FUND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

0%

O

N<e
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED) i+ (R

(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANGIAL INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021)

EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED)
Regular Instruction
Salaries
Employee Benefits
Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Other Expenditures
Total Regular Instruction

Special Education Instruction
Salaries
Employee Benefits
Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Capital Expenditures
Total Special Education
Instruction

instructional Support Services
Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Capital Expenditures
Total Instructional Support
Services

Pupil Support Services
Salaries
Employee Benefits
Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Total Pupil Support Services

Sites and Buildings
Salaries
Employee Benefits
Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Capital Expenditures
Total Sites and Buildings

2022 2021
Over (Under)
Final Budget Actual Amounts Final Budget Actual Amounis
258,425 $ 225,453 $ (32,972) $ 218,760
56,548 60,461 3,913 63,218
7,057 2,000 (5,087) -
9,683 3,205 (6,478) 5,389
547 401 (146) -
332,260 201,520 (40,740) 287,367
153,721 143,842 (9,879) 143,803
38,927 34,760 (4,167) 38,024
23,767 48,060 24,263 31,157
5,020 3,424 (1,596) 7,508
2,254 - (2,254) -
223,689 230,086 6,397 220,492
- 6,837 6,837 8,436
3,465 5,399 1,934 23,711
11,767 4,458 (7,309) -
15,232 16,694 1,462 33,147
1,963 2,000 37 -
321 318 (3) -
5,669 3,205 (2,464) 1,230
1,405 739 (666) 60
9,358 6,262 (3,096) 1,290
6,136 6,657 421 77
1,004 993 (11 12
22,647 22,700 53 97,277
2,686 1,895 (7e1) 3,370
73,601 73,600 (1) -
106,074 105,745 (329) 100,736

-59-



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT

CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081 RET o
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA o D hion OF
GENERAL FUND ROV ST

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ANB: ?Oi\m\o 65 O
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE WAt 1SS
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED) 8V © & TR
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021)

2022 2021
Over (Under)
Final Budget Actual Amounts Final Budget Actual Amounts

EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED)
Fiscal and Other Fixed Costs Programs

Purchased Services $ 10,450 $ 9,762 $ (688) $ 9,151
Total Fiscal and Other Fixed
Costs Programs 10,450 8,762 (688) 9,151
Total Expenditures 924,870 871,355 (63,504) 870,311
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers Out - 101 101 -
Insurance Recovery - - - (129)
Proceeds from Federal PPP - - - (115,973)
Total Other Financing Sources - 101 101 (116,102)
NET CHANGE IN FUND
BALANCE $ (6,785) 110 $ 6,884 110,531
FUND BALANCE
Beginning of Year 248,928 138,397
End of Year $ 249,038 3 248,928

-80 -



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA
FOOD SERVICE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2022
(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION AS OF JUNE 30, 2021)

2022

2021

ASSETS
Cash P $ -
Receivables ¥ aO% of

Due from Food Sales o OQ‘P\ o
Due from MN Department of Education a0®
Due from Federal Government < 90?‘\3“ b -
Prepaid ltems ﬁo

Total Assets $ 336

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Due to General Fund $ -
Accounts Payable -
Deferred Revenue -

Total Liabilities -

Fund Balance
Nonspendable 336
Restricted for:
Food Service -

508

Unassigned Fund Balance -

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 336

-61-

569




DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT ng‘ _‘\0\\\ of

CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081 o et
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA OGSl o
FOOD SERVICE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND __'cOR {1055
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ANB 5% Nco ©
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE ((\%" g i®
BUDGET AND ACTUAL )

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021)

2022 2021
Over (Under)
Final Budget Actual Amounts Final Budget Actual Amounts
REVENUES -
Local Sources
Gifts and Bequests $ - $ - $ - $ 505
State Sources
State Breakfast, Lunch, and Milk
Aid - - - .

Federal Sources
Federal School Lunch - - - -
Commodity Distribution - - - 1,049
Federal Breakfast - - -

N - 1,049

Total Federal Sources -
Sale and Other Conversion of Assets
Sale of Lunches - 64 64 -
Total Revenues - 64 64 1,654
EXPENDITURES
Pupil Support Services
Salaries - - - -
Employee Benefits - - - -
Purchased Services - - - 1,049
Supplies and Materials 249 334 85 -
Other Expenditures - - - -
Total Expenditures 249 334 85 1,049
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES
Transfers in - 101 101 -
Total Other Financing Sources - 101 101 -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE § (249) (169) $ 80 505
FUND BALANCE
Beginning of Year 505 -
End of Year $ 336 505

-62-



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

pY vl \ON
oue 51\%\3“ yon OF
1 FOR ORI &
«,
To the Members of the School Board s ‘EQ\‘/\O\XT R S pA:
‘ : . Wit us
Discovery Public School of Faribault gl

Charter School District No. 4081
Faribault, Minnesota

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of the
Discovery Public School of Faribauit Charter School District No. 4081, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Discovery Public School of Faribault
Charter School District No. 4081’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 2,
2022,

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Discovery Public School of
Faribault Charter School District No. 4081’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Discovery Public
School of Faribautt Charter School District No. 4081's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Discovery Public School of Faribault Charter School District No. 4081’s intemal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that were not identified.

-63-



Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Discovery Public School of Faribault Charter School
District No. 4081’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Minnesota Legal Compliance

In connection with our audit, we noted that Discovery Public School of Faribault Charter School District No. 4081
failed to comply with provisions of the charter schools section of the Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for
Charter Schools, promulgated by the State Auditor pursuant to Minn. Stat. Section 6.65, insofar as they relate to
accounting matters as described below. However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of
such noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures, other matters may have come to our
attention regarding the Discovery Public School of Faribault Charter School District No. 4081's noncompliance with
the above referenced provisions, insofar as the relate to accounting matters.

The results of our testing indicated that for the items tested, Discovery Public Schaof of Faribault Charter School
District No. 4081 did not comply with the claims and disbursements — general provisions section. Some bills were not
paid within the standard payment period.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s intemal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

PR oW
Owatonna, Minnesota ROUGS\\‘:‘%RP‘\%\%\\%:E ov
December 2, 2022 ot 3% ;\\ﬂ\'\o pS: e
GTRETRY



01 _General Fund
Total Revenue
Total Expenditures
Non Spendable:
4.60 Non Spendable Fund
Balance
Restricted/Reserved:
4.03 Staff Development
4.05 Deferred Maintenance
4,06 Heelth and Safety
4.07 Capilal Projects Levy
4.08 Cooperative Revenue
4.14 Operating Debt
4.16 Levy Reduction
4.17 Taconite Building Maini
4.23 Centain Teacher Programs
4.24 Operating Capital

4.26 $25 Taconite
4.27 Disebled Accessibility
4.28 Leaming & Devetopment
4.34 Area Leaming Center
4,35 Confracied Alt, Programs
4.36 Stale Approved Ait. Program
4.38 Gifted & Talented
4.41 Basic Skills Programs
4.45 Career Tech Programs
4.49 Safe School Crime
4.50 Pre-Kindergarten
4.51 QZAB Payments
4.52 OPEB Liab Not In Trust
4.53 Unfunded Sev & Retiremt
Levy
Restricted:
4.64 Restricted Fund Balance
Committed:
4,18 Committed for Separation
4,61 Committed Fund Balance
Assigned:
4.62 Assigned Fund Balance
Unassigned:
4.22 Unassigned Fund Balance

DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081

FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA o\i\
UNIFORM FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDAR@ \O
COMPLIANCE TABLE ORNX 15’
June 30, 2022 @O %) Q\O ?g,.
<<% ‘)/\5
X 0‘@05
q\?‘\e\ 2
‘Audii Audit
Audit UFARS UFARS Audit UFARS UFARS
02 Food Services
$ 871,566 $ 871565 § 1 Total Revenue $ 64 $ 6 5 (1)
$ 871,355 $ 871,355 5 - Total Expenditures $ 334 $ 334 $ -
Non Spendable:
4.60 Non Spendable Fund
$ 1647 $ 16,471 $ - Balance s 338 $ 336 $ -
Restricted/Reserved:
$ - $ - $ - 4,52 OPEB Liab Not In Trust 5 - $ - 5 -
$ - $ - $ - Restricted:
$ . $ - $ - 4.64 Restricted Fund Balance s - 5 - § -
§ - 3 - $ - Unassigned:
$ - $ - $ - 4.63 Unassigned Fund Batance $ - 3 - § -
$ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ - 04_Communily Service
$ - $ - $ - Total Revenue & - $ - $ -
5 - 5 - $ - Total Expenditures s - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ - Non Spendable:
4.60 Non Spendable Fund
$ - $ - $ - Balance 5 - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ - Restricted/Reserved:
$ - $ - $ - 4.26 $25 Taconite $ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ - 4.31 Community Education $ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ - 432 E.C.FE. $ - $ - 5 -
$ - $ - 5 - 4.44 Schoo} Readiness 5 - $ - 5 -
$ - $ - $ - 4.47 Adult Basic Education $ - s - $ -
$ - 3 - $ - 4.52 OPEB Liab Not In Trust 5 - $ - § -
§ - $ - $ - Restricted:
$ 2005 § 2005 § - 4,64 Restricted Fund Balance $ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ - Unassigned:
$ - $ - $ - 4.63 Unassigned Fund Balance  $ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - § -
$ - $ - $ - 06 Building Construction
Total Revenue s - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ - Total Expenditures $ - % - $ -
Non Spendable:
$ - $ - $ - 4.60 Non Spendable Fund Balance § - $ - § -
$ - $ - 5 - Restricted/Reserved:
4,07 Capital Projects Levy § - $ - $ -
$ - $ - 3 - 4,00 Altemnative Facility Program  § - $ - $ -
4,13 Project Funded by COP 5 - $ - $ -
§ 230472 $ 230472 5 - Restricted:
4.64 Restricted Fund Balance $ - $ - 3 -
Unassigned:
4.63 Unassigned Fund Balance $ - $ - $ -

-65-



DISCOVERY PUBLIC SCHOOL OF FARIBAULT
CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4081
FARIBAULT, MINNESOTA
UNIFORM FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS
COMPLIANCE TABLE (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2022

A
A g@f*gi)'(\o\l of
_ RO\
Aul ROL 05
Audit UFARS  UFARS IR s
07 Debt Service \*OO\)‘K P‘se c°
. . ; TR
Total Revenue $ $ $ PV gt
Total Expenditures $ - $ - $ -
Non Spendable:
4.60 Non Spendable Fund Balance § - $ - § -
Restricted/Reseaved:
4.25 Bond Refundings $ - $ - $ -
4.51 QZAB Payments $ - $ - $ -
Restricled:
464 Restricted Fund Balance $ - $ - $ -
Unassigned:
4.63 Unassigned Fund Balance $ - H - $ -
08 Trust
Total Revenue $ - $ - $ -
Total Expenditures $ - $ - 5 -
4.22 Unassignad Fund Balance
(Net Assets) $ - $ - $ -
20 Internal Seryice
Total Revenue $ - $ - $ -
Total Expenditures $ - $ - 5 -
4,22 Unassigned Fund Balance
(Net Assets) $ - $ - $ -
25 _OPEB Revocable Trust
Total Revenue 3 - $ - $ -
Total Expendilures $ - $ - 5 -
4.22 Unassigned Fund Balance
{Net Assetls) $ - $ - $ -
45 OPEB frrevocable Trust
Total Revenue $ - $ - $ -
Total Expenditures $ - $ - 5 -
4.22 Unassigned Fund Balance
{Net Assets) $ - $ - 5 -
47 OPEB Debt Service
Total Revenue $ - $ - $ -
Tolal Expenditures $ - $ - $ -
Non Spendable:
4.60 Non Spendable Fund Balance $ - $ - 5 -
Restricted:
4.25 Bond Refundings $ - $ - $ -
4.64 Restricled Fund Balance $ - $ - $ -
Unassigned:
4.63 Unassigned Fund Balance $ - $ - $ -

-66 -



Members of the School Board
Discovery Public School of Faribault
Charter School District No. 4081
Faribauit, Minnesota

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Discovery Public School of Faribault Charter
School District No. 4081 for the year ended June 30, 2022, we considered the District's internal control in order to
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the financial statements and not to
provide assurance on internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's
internal control.

However, during our audit, we became aware of the following opportunity for strengthening internal controls and
operating efficiency. This letter does not affect our report dated on December 2, 2022, on the financial statements of
Discovery Public School of Faribault Charter School District No. 4081.

We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have already discussed these
comments and suggestions with management, and we will be pleased to discuss this comment in further detail at your
convenience. Qur comments are summarized as foliows:

Minnesota Legal Compliance
As discussed in our report on Minnesota Legal Compliance, during the audit, it was noted that not all invoices

were paid within the 35-day standard payment period. 1t is our recommendation that management closely
monitor invoices and make sure they are timely paid withing the standard payment period.

Our comments are intended to be constructive in nature, and if we can be of further assistance in implementing these
recommendations or in any other capacity, please et us know.

We wish to thank the Discovery Public School of Faribault Charter School District No. 4081, especially Dan, for their
support and assistance during our audit.

Struss CPAs, P.C.
Owatonna, MN

December 2, 2022



T
December 2, 2022 Wit \,\o\)

To the Members of the School Board
Discovery Public School of Faribault
Charter School District No. 4081

126 Eighth Street NW

Faribault, Minnesota

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of Discovery Public
School of Faribault Charter School District No. 4081 {District) for the year ended June 30, 2022. Professional
standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing
standards and Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing
of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated July 13, 2022. Professional
standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Matters

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting
policies used by Discovery Public School of Faribault Charter School District No. 4081 are described in Note 1 to the
financial statements. As described in note 12 to the financial statements, the District changed accounting policies
related 1o Leases by adopting Statement of Governmental Accounting Standards (GASB Statement) No. 87, Leases,
in fiscal year 2021 - 2022. We noted no transactions entered into by the District during the year for which there is a
lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial
statements in the proper period.

Accounting esfimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected.

The most sensifive estimates affecting the District's financial statements were depreciation on capital assets, the
caiculation of amounts due from the Minnesota Department of Education (MDE) and the Federal government, and the
estimated proportionate share of PERA’s and TRA’s net pension liability. Management's estimate of depreciation is
based on estimated useful lives of the assets. Management’s estimate of amounts receivable from the Minnesota
Department of Education and Federal government are based on pupil unit and other data provided by MDE and
expenditure data, respectively. Management's estimate of the District's proportionate share of PERA's and TRA’s Net
Pension Liability is based on guidance from GASB Staternent No. 68 and GASB Statement No. 71 and each plan's
respective allocation tables. Each plan’s allocation tables allocate a portion of the ptan’s net pension liability based on
the District's prior fiscal year contributions as a percentage of the total contributions received for the related year by
the plan. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop depreciation and receivable amounts in
determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole,

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.



1 N
Difiiculties Encountered in Performing the Audit WOt ¢ TOEU?Y\ HOR‘{-} J \(‘?
LT ROV CPAS: T
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in perfé?'}ﬁi?\gg'ﬁa-‘e‘&%‘pleﬁng our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstaternents

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other
than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management has
corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and
corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the District's financial statements
taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter,
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor's report.
We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation
letter dated December 2, 2022.

Management Consultations with Other independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters,
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting
principle to the District's financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed
on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that
the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards,
with management each year prior to retention as the District's auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the
normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information as listed in the table of contents,
which is required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures
consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSl and do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.

We were engaged to report on the individual fund financial statements and schedules and the Uniform Financial
Accounting and Reporting Standards Compliance Table, which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI.
With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form,
content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the
prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We
compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.

We were not engaged to report on the Introductory Section, which accompanies the financial statements but is not
RSI. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.



Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the use of the School Board and management of Discovery Public School of
Faribault Charter School District No. 4081 and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

Very truly yours,
PRV A
Struss CPAs, P.C. ueH DR BUTION o
ROV s TR ioN
Owatonna, MN 1 FOR QHOR\ZP\ c.






